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Vision Statement

To become a Major Global Fashion 
Apparel Company

Mission Statement

To become a $300 Mill ion 
International Branded Jeans 
Business by 2007

Cultural Pillar

The High Speed Passionate Pursuit 
of Progress through Team Work

04 AZGARD-9

Vision &
   Mission Statement
Vision &
   Mission Statement
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Financial
     Highlights

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999

Operating performance (Rs. 000)

Sales–Net 3,160,780 2,428,127 1,931,118 1,257,106 1,079,985 711,195
Export Sales–Gross 1,657,688 1,616,709 1,314,025 1,127,941 876,615 504,693
Local Sales–Gross 1,646,344 1,072,293 754,073 178,412 219,100 233,646
Gross profit 720,001 646,103 493,389 308,630 218,597 37,705
Operating profit 533,436 446,671 350,713 204,117 132,084 (23,506)
Profit before tax 398,677 248,441 146,321 61,883 7,540 (157,426)
Profit after tax but before minority interest 378,677 228,189 160,116 56,583 7,241 (158,820)
Profit after tax but after minority interest 377,004 – – – – –

Financial Position (Rs. 000) 

Share capital 1,737,309 868,654 868,654 319,057 251,557 251,557
Share premium 106,433 143,675 143,675 143,675 143,675 143,675
Capital reserve 255,709 107,368 105,152 – – –
Unappropriated profit / (accumulated loss) 412,400 161,711 (92,057) (310,468) (367,050) (374,291)

2,511,851 1,281,408 1,025,424 152,264 28,182 20,941

Minority Interest 2,743 – – – – –
Shares Deposit Money – – – 40,000 106,086 45,939
Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets 306,565 330,250 355,829 253,289 253,289 253,289
Non–Participatory Redeemable Capital – Secured 750,000 650,000 2,798 4,042 5,286 6,530
Long term liabilities 117,652 150,093 384,649 377,478 519,935 532,505
Deferred liabilities
Staff gratuity – 25,513 19,808 13,578 10,334 8,309
Current liabilities
Current portion of Long term liabilities 363,082 160,799 140,431 154,429 121,965 104,757
Short term finances 1,492,910 1,428,656 995,880 557,810 421,774 334,406
Creditors, accruals & other liabilities 701,846 747,930 552,548 207,767 126,004 131,330
Provision for taxation 64,825 44,825 30,735 8,864 3,564 –
Unclaimed dividends 95 96 116 – – –

2,622,758 2,382,306 1,719,710 928,870 673,307 570,493

Operating fixed assets and Capital work in progress 2,937,696 2,333,753 1,938,068 970,040 1,019,996 1,000,322
Intangible Assets 88,376 – – – – –
Long term deposits & investments 19,533 6,315 19,761 17,805 14,896 14,839

3,045,605 2,340,068 1,957,829 987,845 1,034,892 1,015,161

Current Assets

Stores, spares and loose tools 72,609 45,778 21,689 9,229 12,972 16,015
Stock in trade 1,425,587 1,265,777 722,376 246,192 187,229 167,374
Trade debtors 924,208 536,616 533,468 337,303 239,568 132,520
Short term investment 109,149 – – – – –
Advances, Deposits 713,461 609,728 249,380 168,574 107,606 75,784
Cash & cash equivalents 20,949 21,602 23,477 20,380 14,152 31,154

3,265,962 2,479,501 1,550,390 781,678 561,527 422,847

Net working capital 643,205 97,195 (169,320) (147,192) (111,780) (147,646)
Total capital employed 3,688,809 2,437,263 1,788,509 840,652 923,114 867,515

Profitability analysis

Gross profit to sales (%) 22.78 26.61 25.55 24.55 20.24 5.30
Operating profit to sales (%) 16.88 18.40 18.16 16.24 12.23 (3.31)
Profit before tax to sales (%) 12.61 10.23 7.58 4.92 0.70 (22.14)
Profit after tax to sales (%) 11.98 9.40 8.29 4.50 0.67 (22.33)
Return on capital employed (%) 14.46 18.33 19.64 24.28 15.42 (2.33)
Return on equity (%) 13.38 14.16 11.59 12.70 1.87 (49.60)
Earnings per share (Rs.) (Please refer to Note 31) 4.33 2.63 2.64 2.08 0.29 (6.31)

Financial analysis

Financial charges to sales (%) 3.91 7.65 10.21 10.75 12.44 18.23
Current ratio (times) * 1.45 1.12 0.98 1.01 1.02 0.91
*(excluding current portion of LT liabilities)
Debt to equity (ratio) 30:70 37:63 28 : 72 55 : 45 63 : 37 67 : 33 
Leverage ratio (times) 1.24 1.99 1.54 2.97 3.12 3.49
Breakup value per share (Rs.) 22.43 18.55 15.90 13.96 15.41 12.73
Inventory turnover (times per year) 1.81 1.79 2.97 4.38 4.86 4.55
Total assets turnover (times) 0.50 0.50 0.55 0.71 0.68 0.49
Fixed assets turnover (times) 1.20 1.14 1.33 1.26 1.07 0.83
Interest cover (Rs.) 5.39 3.41 2.78 1.55 1.06 (0.43)

Financial
     Highlights
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Financial
     Highlights
Financial
     Highlights
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Distribution of
              Revenue
Distribution of
              Revenue

Wealth Generated Rupees % 
Total Revenue
Sales Net 3,160,780,433
Other Income 9,864,791
Bought in Material & Services (2,170,015,229)

1,000,629,995 100

Wealth Distribution/ Allocation

To Employees
Salaries, Wages & Benefits 358,167,311 36
(Including WPPF)

To Government
Income Tax, Sales Tax, Custom Duty 141,750,287 14

To Providers of Capital
Charges on borrowed Fund 123,708,381 12

Profit Retained 377,004,016 38

1,000,629,995 100

38%

12% 14%

36%

Wealth Distribution / Allocation

Profit Retained

Providers of Capital

Government

Employees
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Notice of Annual
     General Meeting
Notice of Annual
     General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the 
12th Annual General Meeting of 
AZGARD NINE LIMITED (Formerly 
Legler-Nafees Denim Mills Limited) 
will be held on 31st January 2005 
at 10.00 A.M at the Registered 
Office of the Company Aiwan-i-
Science Off Shahrah-i-Roomi, 
Lahore to transact the following 
business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To confirm the minutes of the 
last Extra Ordinary General 
Meeting.

2. To receive, consider and adopt 
the financial statements for 
the year ended September 30, 
2004 together with Directors’ 
and Auditors’ reports thereon.

3. To approve cash dividend @10 % 
(i.e. Rs.1/- per ordinary share) 
as recommended by the Board.

4. To appoint auditors and fix their 
remuneration. M/s M. Yousaf 
Adil Saleem & Co. Chartered 
Accountants have completed 
their five years as Auditors of 
the Company in terms of clause 
X l i of Code of Corporate 
Governance. The Board, on the 
recommendation of the Audit 
Committee of the Company has 
proposed the appointment of 
M/s Rahman Sarfraz & Company, 
Chartered Accountants as 
Auditors for the year 2004-
2005.

A notice under section 253(1) 
of the Companies Ordinance, 
1984 has also been received 
from a shareholder of the 
Company.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

5. To seek the consent of 
shareholders  to  place  
quarterly accounts of the 
Company on its website instead 
of circulating the same by post 
to the shareholders and, if 
thought fit, to pass the 
following resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the Company 
be and is hereby authorized to 
place its quarterly accounts 
on its website instead of sending 
the same to the members by 
post, subject to compliance and 
approval of the Securities & 
Exchange Commission of 
Pakistan’s circular No. 19 of 
2004 dated April 14, 2004.”

6. To consider and approve the 
amendments in the Memorandum 
of Association to enlarge the 
scope of activities of the 
Company and, if thought fit, to 
pass the following resolution 
as a special resolution, with or 
without modification:

“RESOLVED THAT the approval 
of the Company be and is hereby 
accorded to alter the  
Memorandum of Association as 
per the attached black-lined 
draft reflecting the proposed 
changes subject to the 
approval of SECP.

7. To approve amendments in the 
Articles of Association and in 
this connection to consider and, 
if thought fit, to pass the 
following resolution as a 
special resolution, with or 
without modification:

“RESOLVED THAT the approval 
of the Company be and is hereby 
accorded to alter the Articles 
of Association as per the 
attached black-lined Articles 
of Association reflecting the 
proposed changes.
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Chief 
Executive of the Company and Company 
Secretary be and are hereby authorized 
jointly or severally to do all acts, 
deeds or things and to complete  all 
legal formalities on behalf of the 
Company in connection with obtaining of 
respective approvals of SECP, and 
Company Registration office, Lahore.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Chief 
Executive of the Company and Company 
Secretary be and are hereby authorized 
jointly or severally to make necessary 
amendments/modifications in the 
Memorandum and Articles of Association, 
if any, pointed out or desired by SECP 
or Company Registration office, Lahore 
on behalf of the Company.”

8. To transact any other business with the 
permission of the Chair.

By Order of the Board

Javaid Iqbal
(Company Secretary)

NOTES:

1. The share transfer books of the Company 
will remain closed from January 25, 
2005 to January 31, 2005. (both days 
inclusive).

2. The Preference Shareholders are not 
entitled to attend the meeting.

3. A member entitled to attend and vote at 
the meeting may appoint another member 
as his/her proxy to attend and vote in 
his/her place. Proxies, complete in every 
respect, in order to be effective, must 
be received at the Registered Office of 
the Company not less than 48 hours 
before the time of the meeting.

4. Members who have not yet submitted 
photocopy of computerized National 
Identity Card (NIC) to the Company are 
requested to send the same at the 
earliest.

5. CDC Account Holders will further have 
to follow the under mentioned guidelines 
as laid down by the Securities and 
Exchange Commission of Pakistan:-
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A. For Attending the Meeting

1) In case of individuals, the account holder 
or sub-account holder and/or the person 
whose securities are in group account 
and their registration details are 
uploaded as per the CDC Regulations, 
shall authenticate his identity by showing 
his original NIC or original Passport at 
the time of attending the Meeting.

2) In case of corporate entity, the Board 
of Directors’ resolution / power of 
attorney with specimen signature of the 
nominee shall be produced (unless it has 
been provided earlier) at the time of the 
Meeting.

B. For Appointing Proxies

1) In case of individuals, the account holder 
or sub-account holder and/or the person 
whose securities are in group account 
and their registration details are 
uploaded as per the CDC Regulations, 
shall submit the proxy form as per the 
above requirements.

2) The proxy form shall be witnessed by 
two persons whose names, addresses 
and NIC numbers shall be mentioned on 
the form.

3) Attested copies of NIC or the passport 
of the beneficial owners and the proxy 
shall be furnished with the proxy form.

4) The proxy shall produce his original NIC 
or original passport at the time of the 
Meeting.

5) In case of corporate entity, the Board 
of Directors’ resolution/power of 
attorney with specimen signature shall 
be submitted (unless it has been provided 
earlier) along with proxy form to the 
Company.

Statement under section 160 of the 

Companies Ordinance 1984 in respect of 

the special business to be considered at 

the meeting together with copy of black 

lined Memorandum and Articles of 

Association are being sent to the Members.

STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 160 OF 
THE COMPANIES ORDINANCE, 1984 

Placement of Quarterly Accounts 
on Website

Securities and Exchange Commission of 

Pakistan (SECP) has vide its Circular No. 

19 of 2004 dated April 14, 2004 allowed 

the listed companies to place the quarterly 

accounts on its website subject to its 

approval instead of transmitting the same 

to the shareholders by post which will be 

treated compliance of the provision of 

Section 245 of the Companies Ordinance, 

1984 subject to fulfillment of certain 

conditions including seeking prior consent 

of the shareholders in general meeting.

In order to avoid cumbersome exercise and 

save cost of printing and dispatching the 

quarterly accounts, the Board of Directors 

of the Company in their meeting held on 

December 28, 2004 has recommended to 

the shareholders of the Company to allow 

placement of quarterly accounts on its 

website i.e. www.azgard9.com  instead of 

circulating the same by post to the 

shareholders subject to the approval from 

SECP. The Company after obtaining requisite 

permission from the SECP will inform 

shareholders through advertisement in the 

newspapers. The Company shall also supply 

the copies of the Quarterly Accounts to 

the shareholders, on demand, at their 

registered address, free of cost within one 

week of such demand.
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Amendment in Memorandum and 
Articles of Association 

At the time of incorporation, the Company 
had registered existing Memorandum of 
Association with exclusive object to avail 
the tax exemption as envisaged under the 
clause 118 of Second Schedule of repealed 
Income Tax Ordinance, 1979. The Board of 
Directors in their meeting held on December 
28, 2004 has proposed a multi purpose 
object clause of the Memorandum of 
Association to enlarge and extend the scope 
of activities of the Company for more 
profitable purposes keeping in view the post 
quota regime and globalization objective.

The Board has also considered that due to 
the recent amendments in the Companies 
Ordinance, 1984 (the “Ordinance”) through 
the Companies (Amendment) Ordinance, 2002, 
and the introduction of new corporate laws, 
including but not limited to the Central 
Depositories Act, 1997 and the rules made 
thereunder, the Code of Corporate 
Governance, Listing Regulations, The 
Electronic Transactions Ordinance, 2002, 
the Companies (Buy-Back of Shares) Rules, 
1999, and the Companies Share Capital 
(Variation in Rights and Privileges) Rules, 
2002, certain clauses of the Articles of 
Association of the Company need to be 
altered.

A black lined draft reflecting the proposed 
amendments in Memorandum and Articles of 
Association of the Company are annexed 
hereto.

A copy of the existing as well as proposed 
Memorandum and Articles of Association 
may be inspected by the members during 
business hours at the Registered Office of 
the Company uptil the convening of Annual 
General Meeting.

The Directors of the Company have no 
interest in these special resolutions except 
in their capacity as Shareholders of 
ordinary shares of the Company to the 
extent of their respective shareholding.
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Chief Executive's
                 Review

It is with a tremendous amount of pride that 

I am writing this review. 

Our numbers continue to improve. Sales 

have grown by 30% and profits by 65%.

However, the greatest change has taken 

place within the organization and is currently 

not reflected in the numbers. In fact, change 

has been the buzz word for 2004. The focus 

has been to develop the organization in 

order for the company to be ready to make 

maximum use of the “once in a lifetime” 

opportunity that will be available post the 

removal of quotas in 2005. 

A great deal of emphasis has been placed 

on “cultural change”, greater responsibility 

and ownership at all levels of the 

organization. We have launched a process 

that I hope will gain momentum and will be 

the engine that will drive the Company to 

new unscaled heights in times to come.

I am proud that our management team who 

has championed and lead such a process. I 

hope that we shall continue down this road 

with the same vigour, zeal and enthusiasm 

with which we have started it.

I would like to congratulate all the 

employees of Azgard-9. You have learnt and 

proven that by working together you are 

unbeatable. I hope it is a lesson we have all 

learnt well and pray for our continued 

future success together. 

REGIONAL AND GLOBAL BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT

This was a year that felt like a dress 

rehearsal. Everyone was preparing for 2005 

when the curtain would finally go up. Demand 

was fairly robust. The expectation for 2005 

is generally positive after a cautious start. 

In the first half of the year buyers will 

slowly test new waters and change their 

buying patterns based on new opportunities 

presented by a world based on ”Free Trade”.

Chief Executive's
                 Review

12 AZGARD-9
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Our Business Strategy

We remain committed to globalize Azgard-9.

As such we have evolved from a Pakistan 

only manufacturing business to an 

international business. The Company now 

has a direct presence in Five Countries. “A 

journey of a thousand miles begins with the 

first step.”

The Company within the Sector

The company’s margin is near the top end 

of the Denim Sector in South Asia. 

Its rating by PACRA of “A” in the long 

term and “A1” in the short term is at par 

with the highest in the Textile Sector in 

Pakistan.

Future Outlook

The outlook is optimistic in the long term 

and continuous for the short term. The 

October-December and the January-March 

quarters are typically lean. Moreover, it will 

take time for things to really settle down 

after the removal of quotas. In fact, I believe 

it will be the second half of the year before 

we really see the positive effects of this 

trickle down to our numbers.

The Company has aggressive expansion plans 

during 2005.

A new denim mill is planned which will 

take Fabric capacity to 26 million meters. 

Spinning capacity is planned to increase 

by 51% to 51,000 spindles. 

Garments capacity to be 5 million units 

by the end of 2005.

Power generation capacity to increase 

from 3 mega watts to 10 mega watts by 

the end of the year.

Appreciation

I would like to thank all stakeholders in 

Azgard-9 for their support hard work and 

trust.

Our suppliers, financiers, customers, our 

Board of Directors and our greatest asset, 

our people.

It is through the team work between all of 

these that such success has been possible.

I thank you all and pray for a prosperous 

2005.

Lahore Chief Executive

December 28, 2004
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Directors'
      Report
Directors'
      Report

The Board of Directors of Azgard Nine Limited is pleased to present the 12th Annual 

Report with audited financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2004 of the 

Company along with consolidated financial statements of the group including its foreign 

subsidiary’s results.

Board of Directors feels immense pleasure to announce another year of record results 

and consistent growth. The operating and financial decisions undertaken during the year 

allowed the company to maintain the financial strength and flexibility necessary to 

operate in a capital intensive, cyclical business.

Financial Results

2004 2003

Rupees Rupees

Sales – Net  3,160,780,433 2,428,127,182

Operating Profit 533,435,665     446,671,058

Financial Charges 123,708,381     185,641,156

Profit before Tax 398,677,394     248,440,384

Profit after Tax 377,004,016     228,188,046

 Economic Environment

Year 2003-2004, remained the most 

challenging year for textile industry due 

to following reasons:

Low cotton production all over the 
world causes cotton prices to jump 
up to record of Rs. 3,600 per maund.

Sales rates remained under pressure 
and not enough to absorb the 
increased cost of cotton.

International economic scenario 
remained under depression in the 
aftermath of Iraq war and due to 
higher oil prices. Moreover, some of 
the factors like imposition of 
antidumping duty from EU, increase 
in prices of polyester fiber, high 
quota costs effected sales and profit 
margin.

Highlights of Company Performance

Your Company has performed remarkably 

well, despite of the above mentioned 

challenges

Summarize the key achievement which 

contributed to our success in 2003-2004.

The company’s turnover has increased by 

30% due to exploring new markets and 

increased plant capacity. Moreover profit 

after tax has been increased from 9.40% 

to 11.93% of net sales. The contributory 

factors are decrease in financial charges 

from 7.65% to 3.91% of net sales and tax 

rate from 0.83% to 0.63 % of net sales.

Consequently the EPS has improved from 

Rs. 2.63 to Rs 4.33. The market 

capitalization has strengthened and share 

price has gone to over Rs. 26.
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 Corporate Governance &
 Financial Reporting Framework

As required by the code of corporate 

governance, directors are pleased to 

report that:

The financial statements prepared by 
the management of the Company 
present fairly its true state of 
affairs, the results of its operations, 
cash flows and changes in equity.

Proper books of account of the 
Company have been maintained.

Appropriate accounting policies have 
been consistently applied except for 
changes in accounting policies as 
disclosed in note No. 2.19 in 
preparation of financial statements 
and accounting estimates are based 
on reasonable and prudent judgment.

International accounting standards, 
as applicable in Pakistan have been 
followed in preparation of financial 
statements.

The system of internal control is 
sound and has been effectively 
implemented and monitored.

The Board is satisfied that company 
is doing well and there is no concern 
as regard to going concern under 
the Code. 

There has been no material departure 
from the best practices of corporate 
governance as detailed in the listing 
regulations of the stock exchanges.

Key operating and financial data for 
the last six years is annexed.

There are no statutory payments on 
account of taxes, duties, levies and 
charges which are outstanding as on 
September 30, 2004 except for those 
disclosed in the financial statements.

The value of provident fund 
investments as on September 30, 
2004 was Rs. 32.777 million 
(September 30, 2003: Rs.6.179 
million)

No material changes and commitments 
affecting the financial position of 
your Company have occurred between 
the end of the financial year to which 
this Balance Sheet relates and the 
date of the Directors’ Report.
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Dividend

The Directors are pleased to recommend 

payment of cash dividend @ 10 % (i.e. Rs. 

1.00 per share) to the ordinary 

shareholders of the Company.

 Preference Shares

During the period under review the Company 
has issued 86,865,434 (8.95% cumulative 
(non voting)) preference shares.

 Placement of quarterly Financial
 Statements on Company’s website

In pursuance of circular No. 19 dated April 

14, 2004 of Securities and Exchange 

Commission of Pakistan (SECP), the directors 

have proposed, subject to the approval of 

SECP, to place the quarterly financial 

statements on Company’s website 

www.azgard9.com instead of transmitting 

the same to the shareholders by post.

 Audit Committee

The Board of Directors in compliance with 

the code of corporate governance has 

established an Audit Committee comprising 

of five members. Four members of the Audit 

Committee including chairman are non 

executive directors. The names of its 

members are given in the Company’s 

information.

 Auditors

The present auditors M/S M. Yousaf Adil 

Saleem & Co., Chartered Accountants will 

retire. They have completed their five years 

and in terms of Clause No. (Xli) of the Code 

of Corporate Governance, are not eligible 

for reappointment. The Board of Directors 

places its appreciations for their services. 

The Audit committee has recommended the 

appointment of M/S Rahman Sarfraz & 

Company, Chartered Accountants as 

external auditors of the Company for the 

next financial year 2004-05.
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 Change of Financial year

Pursuant to the SRO 684(1)/2004 dated 

August 10, 2004 of Central Board of 

Revenue, Government of Pakistan (CBR) read 

with circular No. 29 of 2004 dated 

November 5, 2004 of Securities and 

Exchange Commission of Pakistan, the 

financial year of the Company is changed 

as starting from 1st July and ending on 

30th June every year. However, the Company 

intends to have calendar year as its 

financial year keeping in view its 

globalization objective subject to the 

respective approvals of CBR and SECP.

Consequent upon the above said approval 

the financial statements for the period 

ended 1st October 2004 to 31st December 

2005 (15 months) shall be placed before 

the shareholders in next Annual General 

Meeting.

Board Meetings

 During the year under review nine meetings 

were held. Attendance by each director is 

as follows:

Name of Director Eligibility Attended

Mr. Humayun N. Shaikh* 4 4

Mr. Ahmed H. Shaikh 9 9

Mr. Aehsun M. H. Shaikh 9 6

Ms. Bushra Naz. Malik* 4 4

Mr. Muhammad Shah Chishti* 4 3

Mr. Muhammad Talib* 4 3

Mr. Khalid A.H. Al-Sagar 9 1

Mr. Mueen Afzal** 6 3

Chief Justice (R) Mian Mahboob Ahmad** 6 6

Mr. Christopher William Knight** 1 1

Mr. Ajay Prasad Khaitan** 1 1

Mr. Abdul Rasheed Zahid Grewal*** 3 3

Mr. Muhammad Mukarram*** 4 4

Mr. Ali Jehangir Siddiqui**** 1 1

* Resigned on March 18, 2004

** Appointed on March 18, 2004

*** Appointed on May 30, 2004 to fill up 

casual vacancies created due to 

resignations of Mr. Christopher William 

Knight and Mr. Ajay Prasad Khaitan.
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**** Appointed on August 16, 2004 to fill 

up casual vacancy created due to 

resignation of Mr. Abdul Rasheed Zahid 

Grewal.

Leaves of absence were granted to the 

members who could not attend the meeting.

 Pattern of Shareholding

The pattern of shareholding as at September 

30, 2004 including the information under 

the code of corporate of governance for 

ordinary and preference shares are annexed.

 Acknowledgment

The Board of Directors places on record 

its appreciation of the support of the 

shareholders, Government agencies, 

financial institutions and customers, who 

enabled the Company to achieve good 

results.

The Board would also like to express their 

appreciation for the services, loyalty and 

efforts being continuously rendered by the 

executives, staff members and the workers 

of the Company and hope that they will 

continue with these efforts.

                             On behalf of the Board

Lahore Chief Executive
December 28, 2004
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This statement is being presented to comply 

with the Code of Corporate Governance 

contained in Regulation No. 37 of listing 

regulations of Karachi stock exchange for 

the purpose of establishing a framework 

of good governance, whereby the Company 

is managed in compliance with the best 

practices of corporate governance.

The Company has applied the principles 

contained in the Code in the following 

manner:

1. At present the Board of directors 

includes four (4) non-executive 

directors.

2. The directors have confirmed that 

none of them is serving as a director 

in more than ten listed companies, 

including this Company.

3. All the resident directors are 

registered as taxpayers and none of 

them has defaulted in payment of any 

loan to a banking company, a DFI or 

an NBFI or, being a member of a stock 

exchange, has been declared as a 

defaulter by that stock exchange.

4. Seven Casual vacancies occurring in 

the Board were filled up by the 

Directors with in fourteen days 

thereof.

5. The Company has prepared a 

“Statement of Ethics and Business 

Practices”, which has been signed by 

all the directors and employees of 

the Company.

6. The business operations of the 

Company are carried out in 

accordance with the Company's 

Vision/Mission statement, overall 

corporate strategy and significant 

policies of the Company. A complete 

record of particulars of significant 

policies along with the dates on which 

they were approved or amended has 

been maintained.

7. All the powers of the Board have 

been duly exercised and decisions on 

material transactions have been taken 

by the Board.

8. The meetings of the Board were 

presided over by the Chairman and, 

in his absence, by a director elected 

by the Board for this purpose and 

the Board met at least once in every 

quarter. Written notices of the Board 

meetings, along with agenda and 

working papers, were circulated at 

least seven days before the meetings. 

The minutes of the meetings were 

appropr iately recorded and 

circulated.

9. The Board arranged orientation 

courses from time to time for its 

directors during the year to apprise 

them  of  the i r  dut i es  and  

responsibilities.

10. Chief Financial Officer, Company 

Secretary and Head of Internal Audit 

executed their responsibilities in 

accordance with the appointments 

approved by the Board including their 

remuneration and terms and 

conditions of employment, as 

determined by the Chief Executive.

11. The Directors are well conversant 

with the listing regulations, legal 

requirements and operational 

imperatives of the company, and as

Statement of ComplianceStatement of Compliance
with best practices of code 
      of corporate governance
with best practices of code 
      of corporate governance
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such fully aware of their duties and 

responsibilities.

12. The directors’ report for this year 

has been prepared in compliance with 

the requirements of the Code and 

fully describes the salient matters 

required to be disclosed.

13. The financial statements of the 

Company were duly endorsed by CEO 

and CFO before approval of the 

Board.

14. The directors, CEO and executives 

do not hold any interest in the shares 

of the Company other than that 

disclosed in the pattern of 

shareholding.

15. The Company has complied with all 

the corporate and financial reporting 

requirements of the Code.

16. The Board has formed an audit 

committee. It comprises five members, 

of whom four are non-executive 

directors including the chairman of 

the committee.

17. The Board has setup an effective 

internal audit function.

8. The statutory auditors of the 

Company have confirmed that they 

have been given a satisfactory rating

under the quality control review 

programme of the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, 

that they or any of the partners of 

the firm, their spouses and minor 

children do not hold shares of the 

Company and that the firm and all 

its partners are in compliance with 

Internat ional Federat ion of 

Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code 

of ethics as adopted by Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

19. We confirm that all other material 

principles contained in the code have 

been complied with.

Lahore Chief Executive

December 28, 2004
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REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

ON STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH BEST  PRACTICES OF CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

We have reviewed the Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in the 

Code of Corporate Governance prepared by the Board of Directors of AZGARD NINE 

LIMITED (FORMERLY LEGLER NAFEES DENIM MILLS LIMITED) to comply with the Listing 

Regulation No. 37 of the Karachi Stock Exchange (Guarantee) Limited where the Company 

is listed.

The responsibility for compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance is that of the 

Board of Directors of the Company. Our responsibility is to review, to the extent where 

such compliance can be objectively verified, whether the Statement of Compliance reflects 

the status of the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Code of Corporate 

Governance and report if it does not. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the 

Company personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply 

with the Code.

As part of our audit of financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding 

of the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop 

an effective audit approach. We have not carried out any special review of the internal 

control system to enable us to express an opinion as to whether the Board’s statement 

on internal control covers all controls and the effectiveness of such internal controls.

Based on our review of the aspects of the Statement of Compliance with the best practices 

of Corporate Governance, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe 

that the Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance 

to the Code of Corporate Governance to the extent it is presently applicable in all 

material respects, with the best practices contained in the Code of Corporate Governance.

Lahore	 M. YOUSUF ADIL SALEEM & CO.

December 28, 2004	 Chartered Accountants
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AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

 We have audited the annexed balance sheet of AZGARD NINE LIMITED (FORMERLY LEGLER 

NAFEES DENIM MILLS LIMITED) as at September 30, 2004 and the related profit and 

loss account, cash flow statement and statement of changes in equity together with 

the notes forming part thereof, for the year then ended and we state that we have 

obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and 

belief, were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

It is the responsibility of the Company's management to establish and maintain a system 

of internal control, and prepare and present the above said statements in conformity 

with the approved accounting standards and the requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 

1984. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these statements based on our 

audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in 

Pakistan. These standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 

assurance about whether the above said statements are free of any material misstatement. 

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 

disclosures in the above said statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting 

policies and significant estimates made by management, as well as, evaluating the overall 

presentation of the above said statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable 

basis for our opinion and, after due verification, we report that:-

a)	 in our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the company as required 

by the Companies Ordinance, 1984;

b)	 in our opinion--	

i.	 the balance sheet and profit and loss account together with the notes 

thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Ordinance, 

1984, and are in agreement with the books of account and are further in 

accordance with accounting policies consistently applied except for the 

changes in accounting policies due to amendments in Fourth Schedule to 

the Companies ordinance, 1984. as referred to in note 2.19 with which we 

concur;	

ii.	 the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the company's 

business; and	

iii.	 the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred 

during the year were in accordance with the objects of the company;
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c)	 in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 

given to us, the balance sheet, profit and loss account, cash flow statement and 

statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof 

conform with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and, give 

the information required by the Companies Ordinance, 1984, in the manner so 

required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the company's 

affairs as at September 30, 2004 and of the Profit, its cash flows and changes 

in equity for the year then ended; and

d)	 in our opinion, no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr 

Ordinance, 1980.

Lahore	 M. YOUSUF ADIL SALEEM & CO.

Date: December 28, 2004	 Chartered Accountants
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BALANCE SHEET

AS AT SEPTEMBER 30, 2004

				2004	 2003			
Note	 Rupees	 Rupees

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES					

Share capital	 3	 1,737,308,680	 868,654,340 	
Reserves	 4	 362,142,241	 251,042,854 	
Unappropriated profit 		 410,657,982	 161,710,634 				

2,510,108,903	 1,281,407,828 				

SURPLUS ON REVALUATION	
OF FIXED ASSETS	 5	 306,564,511	 330,249,524 				

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

LONG TERM FINANCING - Secured	 6	 750,000,000	 650,000,000 				

LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT	
TO FINANCE LEASE	 7	 116,503,819	 143,704,801 				

DEFERRED LIABILITY - Staff gratuity	 8	 –	 25,512,837 				

LONG TERM DEPOSITS 	 9	 1,147,729	 6,388,502 				

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current portion of:		  			
Long term financing - Secured	 6	 300,000,000	 100,000,000 	
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease	 7	 63,081,881	 60,798,533 

Short term borrowings	 10	 1,492,909,892	 1,428,656,101 
Creditors, accrued and other liabilities	 11	 691,981,192	 747,929,841 
Provision for taxation	 12	 64,824,871	 44,824,871 
Unclaimed dividends		 95,414	 95,683 				

2,612,893,250	 2,382,305,029 				

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS	 13							

6,297,218,212	 4,819,568,521

The annexed notes form an integral part of these accounts. 															

Chief Executive
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				2004	 2003			
Note	 Rupees	 Rupees

NON-CURRENT ASSETS				

FIXED ASSETS		
OPERATING ASSETS	 14	 2,847,936,402	 2,251,337,991 	
CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS	 15	 84,292,338	 82,415,024 				

2,932,228,740	 2,333,753,015 								

INTANGIBLE ASSETS	 16	 88,375,589	 –  								

LONG TERM INVESTMENTS	 17	 2,666,296	 2,664,888 								

LONG TERM DEPOSITS	 18	 18,517,830	 3,649,720 

CURRENT ASSETS						
 		  

Stores, spares and loose tools	 19	 72,608,693	 45,777,796 
Stock in trade	 20	 1,394,729,330	 1,265,777,101 
Trade debts	 21	 945,111,856	 536,616,084 
Advances, deposits, prepayments		  		
 and other receivables	 22	 712,923,170	 609,728,167 
Short term investments	 23	 109,148,931	 – 
Cash and bank balances	 24	 20,907,777	 21,601,750 				

3,255,429,757	 2,479,500,898  				

6,297,218,212	 4,819,568,521  															

Director
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

 				 2004	 2003			
Note	 Rupees	 Rupees 

SALES - Net	 25	 3,155,912,427	 2,428,127,182 					

COST OF SALES	 26	 2,440,779,273	 1,782,024,020 

GROSS PROFIT		 715,133,154	 646,103,162 					

ADMINISTRATIVE AND SELLING EXPENSES	 27	 185,112,548	 199,432,104 

OPERATING PROFIT		 530,020,606	 446,671,058 					

OTHER INCOME	 28	 9,864,791	 1,053,050 			
 		  				

539,885,397	 447,724,108 
OTHER CHARGES					

Financial charges	 29	 123,708,381	 185,641,156 	
Workers' Profit Participation Fund	 11.1	 20,803,281	 13,075,810 	
Others	 30	 111,400	 566,758 				

144,623,062	 199,283,724 					

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION		 395,262,335	 248,440,384 					

PROVISION FOR TAXATION	
Current	 12.1	 20,000,000	 20,252,338 					

PROFIT AFTER TAXATION		 375,262,335	 228,188,046 					

EARNINGS PER SHARE - Basic	 31	 4.31	 2.63 
 	                                 - Diluted	 31	 4.30	 –  															

The annexed notes form an integral part of these accounts																																												

Chief Executive			 Director
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

				2004	 2003			
Note	 Rupees	 Rupees

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES				
Profit before taxation		 395,262,335 	 248,440,384 
Adjustment for:					

Depreciation		 170,505,791 	 147,403,006 	
Amortization of intangible assets		 22,964,732 	 23,907,556 	
Gain on sale of Investments		 (1,192,320)	 – 	
Unrealised gain on Investments		 (6,951,688)	 – 	
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of fixed assets		 (266,005)	 390,008 	
Exchange loss		 –  	 (120,797)	
Gratuity-net		 (25,512,837)	 5,704,555 	
Interest income		 (710,367)	 (665,073)	
Financial charges		 123,708,381 	 184,976,083 				

282,545,687 	 610,035,722 
Long term deposits		 (14,868,110)	 (23,985,924)

Operating profit before working capital changes		 662,939,912 	 586,049,798 						

Changes in working capital	 35	 (715,135,831)	 (655,421,282)

Cash flow from operations		 (52,195,919)	 (69,371,484)
Financial charges paid		 (106,270,614)	 (231,111,364)
Preliminary expenses on issuance of preference shares		 (37,241,757)	 – 
Taxes paid		 (25,275,947)	 (34,523,268)

NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES		 (220,984,237)	 (103,894,752)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES	
Fixed capital expenditure		 (769,994,316)	 (546,078,156)	
Intangible assets		 (111,788,860)	 –  		
Sale proceeds of fixed assets		 1,278,805 	 2,599,632 	
Sale proceeds of short term investments		 1,192,320 	 – 		
Long term Investments		 (1,660,264)	 – 	
Interest received		 710,367 	 665,073 	
Long term Deposits		 –  	 2,005,584 	
Short term Investments		 (102,197,243)	 – 

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES		 (982,459,191)	 (540,807,867)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES		  			
Preference shares issued		 868,654,340 	 –  	
Repayment of long term deposits		 (5,240,773)	 (4,042,187)	
Long term financing obtained		 650,000,000 	 750,000,000 	
Repayment of long term loans		 (350,000,000)	 (370,163,877)	
Dividend paid		 (269)	 – 	
Short term finances- net		 64,253,791 	 432,775,962 	
Finance lease liabilities paid		 (24,917,634)	 65,369,020 

NET CASH INFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES		 1,202,749,455 	 873,938,918 						

NET (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS		 (693,973)	 (1,875,065)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS	

AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR		 21,601,750 	 23,476,815 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR		 20,907,777 	 21,601,750 

Chief Executive			 Director
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

	Share Capital 	 Reserves 	 Unappropriated 	  	  	

Issued, 	 Shares 	 Share	 Reserve on	Preference share	 Surplus on	  	 Profit / 	 Total 	 Surplus on	

subscribed and 	 under 	 premium	 merger	 redemption	 revaluation of	 Total	 (Accumulated 	 equity 	 revaluation of	

paid–up 	 issue 	  	  	 reserve	 investments	  	 Loss) 	  	 fixed assets	

R  U  P  E  E  S  	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

Balance as at October 1, 2002– Restated 	 360,534,420 	 508,119,590 	 143,675,125 	 105,152,335 	 – 	 – 	 248,827,460 	 (92,057,197)	 1,025,424,273 	 355,829,309 													

Profit for the year 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 		 – 	 228,188,046 	 228,188,046 	 – 	

Ordinary shares issued 	 508,119,590 	 (508,119,590)	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	

Adjustment of fractional amount 
    on issue of shares 	 330 	 – 	 – 	 (330)	 – 	 – 	 (330)	 – 	 – 	 – 	

Surplus on revaluation of fixed 
   assets transferred to 						 – 	 – 		 – 	 – 	
   retained earnings during the year 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 25,579,785 	 25,579,785 	 (25,579,785)	

Revaluation of investments 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 2,215,724 	 2,215,724 	 – 	 2,215,724 	 – 

Balance as at September 30, 2003 	 868,654,340 	 – 	 143,675,125 	 105,152,005 	 – 	 2,215,724 	 251,042,854 	 161,710,634 	 1,281,407,828 	 330,249,524 	

Profit for the year 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 375,262,335 	 375,262,335 	 – 	

Preference shares issued 	 868,654,340 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 868,654,340 	 – 	

Surplus on revaluation of fixed 
   assets transferred to 											
retained earnings during the year 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 23,685,013 	 23,685,013 	 (23,685,013)	

Preference shares redemption reserve 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 150,000,000 	 – 	 150,000,000 	 (150,000,000)	 – 		

Expenses incurred on issue of 
   preference shares 	 – 	 – 	 (37,241,757)	 – 	 – 	 – 	 (37,241,757)	 – 	 (37,241,757)		

Revaluation of investments 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 		 (1,658,856)	 (1,658,856)	 – 	 (1,658,856)	 – 	

Balance as at September 30, 2004 	 1,737,308,680 	 – 	 106,433,368 	 105,152,005 	 150,000,000 	 556,868 	 362,142,241 	 410,657,982 	 2,510,108,903 	 306,564,511 																									

The annexed notes form an integral part of these accounts																																																																						

Chief Executive			 Director
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

1	 STATUS AND ACTIVITIES	

The name of the Company was changed from Legler Nafees Denim Mills Limited to Azgard 
Nine Limited (the Company) as on April 07, 2004. The Company was incorporated in Pakistan 
as a public limited Company and its shares are quoted at Karachi Stock Exchange (Guarantee) 
Limited. The Company is a composite spinning, weaving, dyeing and stitching unit engaged 
in the manufacturing of yarn, denim and denim products.			

2	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES		

2.1	 Statement of compliance		

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the approved 
accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies 
Ordinance, 1984 (the Ordinance). Approved accounting standards comprise of such 
International Accounting Standards as notified under the provisions of the 
Ordinance. Where the requirements of the Ordinance or directives issued by the 
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan differ with the requirements of 
these standards, the requirements of the Ordinance or the said directives take 
precedence. 					

2.2	 Accounting convention			

These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention except 
as referred in notes 2.5, 2.12 and 2.13 relating to certain fixed assets that have 
been included at revalued amounts and certain financial instruments which are 
stated at fair value.	

2.3	 Staff retirement benefits		

The Company operated an unfunded gratuity scheme (defined benefit plan) covering 
all its permanent employees who had attained the minimum qualifying period. The 
management ceased the gratuity scheme during the year and replaced it with 
provident fund (defined contribution plan). The gratuity liability accruing till March 
31, 2004 has been transferred to provident fund.				

Provision for gratuity was made annually to cover the obligation under the scheme 
in accordance with actuarial recommendations. Actuarial valuation of the scheme 
was carried out at September 30, 2002, using the projected unit credit method. 
The Company's policy with regard to actuarial gains/losses was to follow minimum 
recommended approach under IAS-19 'Employee Benefits'.		

Currently the Company operates an approved defined contributory provident fund 
for its employees. Equal contributions are made by employee and the Company @ 
8.5 % per month of basic pay.				

2.4	 Taxation		

Current		

Income tax expense represents the sum of current tax payable, adjustments, if any, 
to provision for tax made in prior years arising from assessments framed during 
the year for such years.		

Deferred				

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on all temporary timing differences 
at the balance sheet date between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their

					 			

These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention except as 
referred in notes 2.5, 2.12 and 2.13 relating to certain fixed assets that have been 
included at revalued amounts, monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies which 
have been translated and certain financial instruments which are stated at fair value.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

carrying amounts for financial statements' reporting purposes taking into consideration the 
implications of taxes payable under presumptive tax regime,		
if any.				

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that 
future taxable profits will be available against which these assets can be utilised.		

2.5	 Operating fixed assets and depreciation			

Operating fixed assets, except freehold land, are stated at cost or revalued 
amounts less accumulated depreciation. Freehold land is stated at revalued amount.		

Depreciation is charged to income for the year applying the reducing balance 
method. Amount equal to incremental depreciation charged during the year on 
revalued amount of assets has been transferred from surplus on revaluation of 
fixed assets to unappropriated profit/accumulated loss through statement of 
changes in equity. The adjustments made in this context and the amounts involved 
have been disclosed in note 5 of surplus on revaluation of fixed assets.				

The useful life and depreciation method are reviewed periodically to ensure that 
the method and period of depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern 
of economic benefits from items of fixed assets. Rates of depreciation are stated 
in note 14. No depreciation is provided on assets in the year of disposal, whereas 
full year's depreciation is charged in the year of purchase. Major additions or 
extensions to production facilities are depreciated on pro-rata basis for the period 
of use during the year.		

Capital work in progress is stated at cost.		

Gain or loss on disposal of operating fixed assets is included in current year's 
income. Normal maintenance and repairs are charged to current year's income as 
and when incurred. Major renewals, improvements and replacements are capitalised 
and assets so replaced, if not kept as stand by, are retired.				

2.6	 Leases		

Assets subject to finance lease are stated at lower of present value of minimum 
lease payments under lease agreements and the fair value of the assets less 
accumulated depreciation. Related obligations under the finance lease less financial 
charges allocated to future periods are shown as liabilities. Depreciation is charged 
at the rates specified in note 14 to write-off the assets over the estimated useful 
life in view of the certainty of the ownership of the assets at the end of the lease 
period.		

2.7	 Borrowing costs				

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production 
of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period 
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those 
assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended 
use or sale.		

All other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which 
these are incurred.
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	2.8	 Intangible assets	

2.8.1	 Research and development		

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which 
it is incurred. Costs incurred on development projects (relating to design and 
testing of new or improved products) are recognised as intangible assets only if 
all of the following conditions are met;			

- an asset is created that can be identified			
- it is probable that the asset created will generate future economic 			
  benefits; and				
- the development cost of the asset can be measured reliably.							

All other development expenditures are recognised as an expense when incurred. 
Development costs previously recognised as an expense are not recognised as an 
asset in subsequent period. Development costs that have been capitalized are 
amortized from the commencement of the commercial production of the product 
on a straight line basis over the period of its expected benefits. The amortization 
period adopted does not exceed five years.	

2.8.2	 Others		

Other intangible assets are amortised over the period of their expected benefits. 
The amortisation period adopted does not exceed five years.	

2.9	 Investments	

2.9.1	 Investment in subsidiary		

Investments are initially measured at cost. Cost in relation to investments made 
in foreign currency is determined by translating the consideration paid in foreign 
currency into rupees at exchange rates prevailing on the date of transactions.	

2.9.2	 Other investments				

All investments are initially recognized at cost, being fair value of the consideration 
given and including acquisition charges associated with investments and classified 
as whether held for trading or available for sale.				

Subsequent to initial recognition, investments which are classified as held for 
trading and available for sale are measured at fair value. Investments held for 
trading are those which are either acquired for generating a profit from short 
term fluctuation in prices or dealer's margin, or are securities included in a portfolio 
in which a pattern of short term profit taking exists. Investments intended to be 
held for an indefinite period of time, which may be sold in response to needs for 
liquidity or change in interest rates are classified as available for sale. The 
investments are classified as non current unless management has intention of 
holding these for less than twelve months from the balance sheet date, in which 
case they are included as current assets.						

Gains and losses on investments held for trading are recognized in income. Gains 
and losses on investments available for sale are recognized as separate component 
of equity until investments are sold, disposed-off or until the investments are 
determined to be impaired, at which time accumulated gain/loss previously reported 
in equity is included in profit and loss account.
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		All purchases and sales of investments are recognized on the trade date, which 
is the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the investments. 				

The fair value of publicly traded investment is based on quoted market prices at 
the balance sheet date. 			

2.10	 Stores, spares and loose tools				

These are valued at cost determined using first in first out (FIFO) method except 
items in transit which are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges 
paid thereon.		

2.11	 Stock in trade		

Basis of valuation are as follows:		

Raw materials				
At mills	 - At lower of first in first out cost and net realisable value			
In-transit	 - At cost accumulated to the balance sheet date		

Work in process	 - At lower of manufacturing cost and net realisable value		
Finished goods	 - At lower of manufacturing cost and net realisable value		
Waste	 - At net realisable value					

Average manufacturing cost in relation to work in process and finished goods 
includes prime cost and proportion of production overheads.					

Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in ordinary course of 
business less cost necessary to be incurred in order to make the sales.	

2.12	 Foreign currency translations			

Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees 
at the rates of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date, except those covered 
under forward exchange contracts which are stated at contracted rate. Foreign 
currency transactions are translated into Pak Rupees at the rates prevailing at 
the date of transaction except for those covered by forward contracts, which are 
translated at contracted rates. Exchange differences are included in profit and 
loss account currently.	

2.13	 Financial instruments	

2.13.1	 Financial assets 		

All financial assets have been stated in accordance with the requirements of IAS-
39 (Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement). Financial assets are 
initially recognised at cost which is the fair value of the consideration given at 
initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets are carried 
at fair value except any financial assets whose fair value cannot be estimated 
reliably.		

A 'regular way' purchase or sale of financial assets are recognised using trade 
date accounting.	

2.13.2	 Financial liabilities		

All financial liabilities are initially recognised at cost, which is the fair value of 
the consideration received at initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition 
financial liabilities are carried at fair value, amortised cost or cost as the case
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may be.	

2.13.3	 De-recognition		

Financial assets are de-recognised when the Company loses control of the 
contractual rights that comprise the financial assets.		

Financial liabilities are de-recognised when they are extinguished, that is, when the 
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.		

Gain or loss, if any, on de-recognition and settlement of financial assets and 
liabilities is included in net profit or loss in the period in which it arises.	

2.13.4	 Trade debtors		

Trade debtors are stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate allowances 
for estimated irrecoverable amounts, if any.					

2.13.5	 Provisions		

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation 
as a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate 
of the amount can be made.	

2.13.6	 Off setting		

Financial assets and financial liabilities are set-off and the net amount is reported 
in the financial statements when there is a legally enforceable right to set off 
and the Company intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets 
and to settle the liabilities simultaneously.	

2.13.7	 Cash and cash equivalents		

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash-in-hand and balances with banks.		

2.14	 Impairment 			

The carrying amount of the Company's assets are reviewed at each balance sheet 
date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment loss. If any such 
indication exists, the assets are written down to their estimated recoverable amount 
and impairment losses are recognised in the net profit and loss account. Consequently, 
the depreciation charge is adjusted in the future period to allocate asset's revised 
carrying amount over its estimated useful life.		

2.15	 Creditors, accrued and other liabilities			

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the 
fair value of the consideration to be paid in future for goods and services.	

2.16	 Dividend		

Dividend on ordinary shares is recognised in equity in the period in which it is 
declared/paid.	

2.17	 Revenue recognition
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		- Revenue from local sales is recognised on dispatch of goods to customers.		
- Revenue from export sales is recognised on shipment basis.		
- Export rebate is recognised when entitlement is established.		
- Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive payment 
  is established.	

2.18	 Related party transactions				

All transactions involving related parties arising in the normal course of business 
are conducted at arm's length using valuation modes, as admissible. Parties are 
said to be related when they meet the definition as provided in the Companies 
Ordinance, 1984.		

2.19	 Change in accounting policies			

Pursuant to changes in the fourth schedule to the Companies Ordinance, 1984, 
the following changes have been made in accounting policies as adopted by the 
Company:		

1)	 Costs formerly treated as deferred costs and charged to profit and loss 
account periodically have been reclassified as intangibles assets where they 
meet the definition of such assets. Other costs which have not been classified 
as intangibles are written off. (See note 2.8)		

2)	 The exchange differences arising on loans used for financing operating fixed 
assets previously capitalised, are now included in profit and loss account 
annually.		

3)	 No provision for proposed dividend is made instead the dividend is now 
recognised as per note 2.16.				

Impact on					
financial	 Nature of impact				

statements				
(Rupees)		

1)	 Deferred costs	 7.44 million	 Profit of the Company would 
have been lower by Rs. 7.44 
million and retained earnings 
would have been higher by 
Rs.29.8 million with 
corresponding effect on 
balance sheet assets.		

2)	 Exchange differences on foreign	         Nil	 Adjustments in the carrying			
currency borrowings.		 v a l u e  o f  p l a n t  a n d 	 	 	 	 	

machinery, due to exchange					
fluctuations on foreign 
currency loans utilised for 
acquisition of such assets 
with effect on the 
depreciation for the year.		

3)	 Proposed dividend	         Nil	 Appropriation of retained 
earnings.
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			2004	 2003		
Note 	 Rupees	 Rupees 	

3	 SHARE CAPITAL 				
3.1	 Authorised capital		

300,000,000 (2003: 117,380,000) 		
ordinary and preference shares of Rs. 10/- each	 3,000,000,000	 1,173,800,000 		

Authorised capital of the Company has been increased to Rs. 3,000,000,000 divided into		
213,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each and 87,000,000 preference shares 		
of Rs. 10/- each.					

3.2	 Issued, subscribed and paid up capital:		

23,777,369		 Ordinary shares of 				
   Rs.10/- each				
   fully paid in cash	 237,773,690	 237,773,690 			

63,088,065		 Issued for consideration 				
   other than cash	 630,880,650	 630,880,650 		

86,865,434			 868,654,340	 868,654,340 			

86,865,434		 Preference shares of 				
   Rs.10/- each				
   fully paid in cash			

 	    Issued during the year      3.3  	 868,654,340	 – 		

173,730,868			 1,737,308,680	 868,654,340 	

3.3	 The Company issued cummulative preference shares during the year. These are non-voting, non-
participatory, partly convertible and are redeemable in 6 years from the date of issuance. These 
are listed on Karachi Stock Exchange (Guarantee) Limited.	

Rate of dividend	

Annualised fixed dividend 	
   @ 8.95% per annum to be paid.	
In case of default in payment of dividend:	

default in payment during first year and	 Rate of dividend will be 9.75 % for first year, 	
paid regularly during subsequent years.	 total dividend for the year will be Rs. 1.87 		

 per share including 8.95%	

default in payment during second year and		 Rate of dividend will be 20.73 % for second year, 	
paid regularly during subsequent years.	 total dividend for the year will be Rs. 2.93 per			

share including 8.95% for third year.				

default in payment during third year and paid	 Rate of dividend will be 31.95 % for third year, 	
regularly during subsequent years.	 total dividend for the year will be Rs. 4.09			

per share including 8.95% for fourth year.				

default in payment during fourth year and	 Rate of dividend will be 44.56 % for fourth year, 	
paid regularly during subsequent years.	 total dividend for the year will be Rs. 5.35 per			

share including 8.95% for fifth year.		

default in payment during fifth year and	 Rate of dividend will be 58.30 % for fifth year, 	
paid regularly during subsequent years.	 total dividend for the year will be Rs. 6.73 per			

share including 8.95% for sixth year.					

At the end of year six, if the Company fails to pay dividend and/or redeem the principal in the manner 
mentioned below, the entire amount of the accrued dividend plus the face value of the outstanding 
preference share will be converted, at the option of preference shareholder, into ordinary shares 
at break-up value of the Company to be determined at that time.
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	Redemption option and timing	

Redemption will be allowed as follows subject to the provisions of Section 85 of the Companies 
Ordinance, 1984, as follows:		

50% of the issue amount at the end of fifth (5th) year of issuance/allotment;	
50% of the issue amount at the end of sixth (6th) year of issuance/allotment;		

Conversion/ Swap	

The preference shareholders may at their option convert up to 25% of the value of their respective 
preference shares into ordinary shares between eighteen and forty two months from the issue/ 
allotment at the conversion ratio of ten preference shares for 6.8 ordinary shares. Preference 
share-holders exercising their right of conversion will not receive any of remaining fixed coupon 
amounts on the converted amount.		

Redemption reserve	
The Company will create a redemption reserve of at least up to the amount of redemption of 
preference shares i.e. at least up to the amount of outstanding preference shares submitted for 
redemption by:		

– Allocating Rs.150 million of the reserves as at 30th September, 2004;		

– Appropriating profits of at least Rs. 50 million each subsequent year to build up redemption 
  reserve;		

– Creating additional reserves to match the amount required for redemption.

3.4	 As a condition of approval of the scheme of arrangement, the Company has given an undertaking 
to the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan to pay dividends of 25% over a period of three 
years before September 30, 2005.			

2004	 2003		
 	 Rupees	 Rupees 	

4	 RESERVES	

Capital Reserves 		
Share premium on ordinary shares		 106,433,368	 143,675,125 		
Preference shares redemption reserve		 150,000,000	 –  		
Reserve on merger		 105,152,005	 105,152,005 				

361,585,373	 248,827,130 		
Surplus on revaluation of investments		 556,868	 2,215,724 				

362,142,241	 251,042,854 			

5	 SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF FIXED ASSETS	

Opening balance		 414,123,474	 414,123,474 		
Surplus transferred to unappropriated profit:		

– Prior years		 83,873,950	 58,294,165 			
– Current year		 23,685,013	 25,579,785 				

107,558,963	 83,873,950 				

306,564,511	 330,249,524 		

The Company revalued land, building and plant and machinery during 1999 and 2002 
which produced revaluation surplus of Rs. 253.29 million and Rs. 160.83 million 
respectively. The total surplus of Rs. 414.123 million had been added to the book 
value of the assets and the corresponding amount had been credited to the surplus 
on revaluation of fixed assets.
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			2004	 2003		
Note 	 Rupees	 Rupees 

6	 LONG TERM FINANCING - Secured 				

Long term running finances 	
   - Utilised under mark up arrangements 		

   Habib Bank Limited (HBL)	 6.1	 400,000,000 	 500,000,000 			
   Faysal Bank Limited (FBL)	 6.2	 – 	 250,000,000 		
   United Bank Limited (UBL) 	 6.3	 200,000,000 	 – 		
   Citi Bank	 6.4	 200,000,000 	 – 			
   Term Finance Certificates (TFCs)	 6.5	 250,000,000 	 – 				

1,050,000,000 	 750,000,000 			
Less: Current maturity grouped 		
   under current liabilities		 (300,000,000)	 (100,000,000)				

750,000,000 	 650,000,000 	

6.1	 The Company obtained this finance from consortium of banks lead by HBL which is repayable in 10 
equal half yearly instalments commencing from December, 2003.	

The finance carries mark-up based on the State Bank of Pakistan's last auctioned 6-months treasury 
bills' cut-off plus 300 basic points with a floor of 4.75% per annum. It is secured by way of first 
pari passu charge on the project through an equitable mortgage on land and building and 
hypothecation of plant and machinery and personal guarantees of some of the directors of the 
Company.

6.2	 This represents bridge finance facility obtained from FBL carrying mark-up @ 4.50 % per annum. 
The loan was paid off during the year, from the proceeds of TFCs - private placement. It was secured 
against charge on fixed assets.

6.3	 The Company obtained a bridge finance facility of Rs. 250 million from UBL against which the bank 
disbursed Rs. 200 million up to September 30, 2004. It is repayable within two months from the 
date of disbursement. The management of the Company intends to substitute the bridge finance with 
long term finances and as such the same has been classified as a non-current liability.	

The facility is secured against 1st pari passu charge on assets, personal guarantees and demand 
promissory notes.

6.4	 The Company has executed an agreement with Citi Bank for sale of assets at Rs. 200 million and 
purchase back the same at a purchase price of Rs. 322.792 Million. The loan is repayable in 6 equal 
half yearly instalments commencing from February 2006.		

This facility carries mark-up @ 8% per annum. Mark-up @ 22% per annum is chargeable, if the Company 
fails to make payment on due date. It is secured by way of hypothecation and/or hypothecation over 
the present and future fixed assets of the Company and demand promissory notes.

6.5	 TFCs have been issued by way of private placements with a consortium of institutional investors. 
The total issue comprises of 250 TFCs having face vale of Rs. 100,000 and 45,000 TFCs having 
face value of Rs. 5,000.	

Terms of repayment	

Call option/ Partial call option	

The Company may redeem the TFCs by way of exercise of the call/partial call option by giving written 
notice to the TFC holders and the trustee of not less than ninety days. In case of exercise of 
call/partial call option within thirty months from the issue date, the Company is liable to pay 
premium @ 0.1% of the call/partial redemption amount.		

Rate of return	

The return on TFCs is payable semi annually. This is calculated at six months KIBOR prevailing two 
days prior to the issue date in respect of profit payment due plus margin of 1.75%.
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	Trustee	

In order to protect the interests of TFC holders, NDLC-IFIC Bank Limited has been appointed as 
trustee under a trust deed dated 2nd August, 2004.		

In case the Company defaults in any of its obligations, the trustee may enforce the Company's 
obligations in accordance with the terms of trust deed. The proceeds of any such enforcements 
shall be distributed to the TFC holders at that time on pari passu basis in proportion to the amounts 
owed to them in pursuant to the TFCs.	

Security	

This finance is secured by first pari passu charge over present and future fixed assets excluding 
immovable property and mortgage of immovable properties.

7	 LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT TO FINANCE LEASE - Secured 				

2004	 2003 				
Rupees	 Rupees 	

Gross minimum lease payments 			
Not later than one year		 76,494,987	 81,292,132 		
Later than one year but not later than five years	 146,218,007	 189,667,338 				

222,712,994	 270,959,470 	
Less:  	Financial charges allocated to future periods	 26,050,646	 44,671,837 				

196,662,348	 226,287,633 	
Less:  Security deposits adjustable on 		

     expiry of lease terms		 17,076,648	 21,784,299 				

179,585,700	 204,503,334 	
Less:  Current maturity grouped under 	
          current liabilities		 63,081,881	 60,798,533 				

116,503,819	 143,704,801 	
Present value of minimum lease payments 						

Not later than one year		 63,081,881	 60,798,533 		
Later than one year but not later than five years	 116,503,819	 143,704,801 				

179,585,700	 204,503,334 												

The Company has acquired plant and machinery and vehicles from various Leasing Companies. 
Rentals are payable in monthly/quarterly instalments upto November, 2008. The discount 
factors applied range between 6.75% to 19.00% per annum. The Company intends to 
exercise its option to purchase the leased assets upon payment of liability over the lease 
term and surrender of deposit at the end of lease term. Taxes, repairs and insurance 
costs are to be borne by lessee. In case of termination of the agreement, the lessee is 
to pay the entire rent of un-expired period. These are secured against demand promissory 
notes.		

8	 DEFERRED LIABILITY - Staff gratuity 	

Movement in liability recognised in the 	
balance sheet 								

Balance sheet liability / (assets) as on 	
   September 30, 2003		 25,512,837	 19,808,282 		
Amount recognised during the year		 11,218,709	 13,706,344 				

36,731,546	 33,514,626 	

Contributions made by the Company 	
   during the year - Transferred to provident fund. 	 36,731,546	 8,001,789 				

– 	 25,512,837
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				2004	 2003 			
Note	 Rupees	 Rupees		

Reconciliation of the liability recognised 		
in the balance sheet				

Present value of defined benefit obligation		 – 	 26,157,132 		
Less: Un-recognised actuarial losses		 – 	 (644,295)				

– 	 25,512,837 			

The following amounts have been charged to the profit and loss account during the 			
current year. 			

Provision for gratuity for the year, the break-up of which is as follows:		

Current service cost		 9,943,067	 11,725,516 		
Interest cost		 1,275,642	 1,980,828 				

11,218,709	 13,706,344  		

Amount charged to 		
   cost of sales		 8,414,032	 10,115,369 			
   administrative and selling expenses		 2,804,677	 3,590,975 					

11,218,709	 13,706,344 	

8.1	 Actuarial valuation was carried out as at September 30, 2002 using projected 
unit credit method assuming a discount rate of 10% per annum and expected rate 
of increase in salary @ 9% per annum.

9	 LONG TERM DEPOSITS - Unsecured 			

This represents interest free deposits received from Company's employees under the 
Company's car scheme. Vehicles have been provided to the employees against these deposits. 
These are adjustable after specified periods by transfer of vehicle to the respective 
employee.			

10	 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS 	

Finances under mark-up 
       arrangements - Secured	 10.1	 1,482,583,392	 1,416,329,149 	
Temporary over draft - Unsecured	 10.2	 10,326,500	 12,326,952 				

1,492,909,892	 1,428,656,101 		

10.1	 These represent short-term financing facilities available from various banks 
amounting to Rs.3,116.08 million (2003: Rs.1,627.50 million) and US$10.5 million 
(2003: US$ 11.500 million). These facilities carry mark-up at the rates ranging 
between Re. 0.06 to Re. 0.19 per Rs. 1,000 per day or part thereof on the price 
outstanding.							

L/C limits available for opening letters of credit/guarantee aggregate Rs. 1,040.25 
million (2003: Rs. 827.50 million) of which the amount remaining un-utilised at the 
year end was Rs. 510.38 million (2003: Rs. 89.101 million) .					

These finances are secured by 1st pari passu charge over current assets, 
hypothecation of stocks of raw materials, work-in-process and finished goods, 
pledge of raw materials, goods imported through banks, export bills drawn under 
confirmed L/C's or contracts, lien on documents of the title of goods and personal 
guarantees of some of the directors of the Company.				

These include foreign currency loan of US$ 6,992,986 (2003: US$ 3,148,588) 
which have been converted into Pak Rupees at the exchange rate prevailing on the 
balance sheet date i.e. US$1 = Rs. 59.37 (2003: US$ 1= Rs. 58.05).				

The facilities are generally available for a period of twelve months and are 
renewable on expiry, however, purchase prices are repayable on various dates, 
latest by September 30, 2005.
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	10.2	 It represents cheques issued by the Company in excess of balance at banks which 
have been presented for payment in the subsequent period.	

10.3	 Finances under mark-up arrangements include Rs.58.78 million (2003: Rs.NIL ) 	
obtained in normal course of business at arm's length from Union Bank Ltd, a related party.									

2004	 2003 			
Note	 Rupees	 Rupees

11	 CREDITORS, ACCRUED AND OTHER LIABILITIES								

Creditors 		 195,881,907	 235,040,148 	
Bills payable - Secured		 316,801,324	 403,527,536 	
Accrued liabilities		 54,792,260	 50,571,639 	
Workers' Welfare Fund		 20,000	 20,000 		
Advances from customers		 59,877,980	 25,833,632 	
Mark-up accrued on: 		

Long term finances		 –	 30,822 			
Short term borrowings 		 26,687,284	 8,353,144 		

Lease finance charges		 1,393,512	 2,259,063 		
Worker's Profit Participation Fund	 11.1	 20,803,281	 13,075,810 	
Customs duty, surcharge		 800,301	 797,744 		
Tax deducted at source		 9,064,521	 4,808,634 		
Other liabilities 		 5,858,822	 3,611,669 				

691,981,192	 747,929,841 		

11.1	 Workers' Profit Participation Fund 						
Opening balance		 13,075,810	 10,009,728 			
Add: Interest on funds utilised by the Company	 818,980	 658,827 				

13,894,790	 10,668,555 		

Less: Payments made during the year		 13,894,247	 10,667,950 		
Deposited in government treasury 		 543	 605 				

13,894,790	 10,668,555 				

–	 – 		

Add: Contribution for the year		 20,803,281	 13,075,810 				

20,803,281	 13,075,810 	

12	 PROVISION FOR TAXATION	
12.1	 Current		

Opening balance		 44,824,871	 30,734,778 			
Add: Provision made during the year		
- Current year		 20,000,000	 19,840,093 			
- Prior years		 – 	 412,245 				

20,000,000	 20,252,338 

 			 Less: Adjusted against completed assessments	 – 	 6,162,245 				

64,824,871	 44,824,871 		

12.2	 Current status of pending tax assessments		

12.2.1	Income tax assessments of Azgard Nine Limited (Formerly Legler Nafees 
Denim Mills Ltd) (the Company) have been completed up to tax year 2003. 
The Company's appeals for assessment years 1996-1997, 1998-1999, 
1999-2000, 2000-2001 & 2001-2002 before the Lahore High Court are 
pending for adjudication.					

12.2.2	Income tax assessments of Nafees Cotton Mills Limited (Nafees) now 
merged into the Company have been completed up to the income year ended 
30 September, 2001 (Assessment year 2002-2003).
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			Nafees has filed appeals before the Lahore High Court for the assessment 
years 1988-89, 1992-93 and 1993-94 which are pending for adjudication. 
The department is in second appeal before the Income Tax Appellate Tribunal 
for the assessment years 1997-98 and 1998-99. The Company's appeal for 
the assessment year 1999-2000 before the Income Tax Appellate Tribunal 
is pending for adjudication. The Company has also filed appeals before the 
Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) for the Assessment Years 1999-2000, 
2000-2001, 2001-2002 and 2002-2003 which are pending for adjudication.				

12.2.3	Provision for current year's taxation represents tax payable under section 
154 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the Ordinance), keeping in view the 
provisions of Circular No.5 of 2000 read with rule 216 of Income Tax Rules 
1982 for export sales, whereas, the local sales are to be taxed under 
normal law.						

Adjustments to be made in provision for taxation on confirmation or otherwise 
of the appeals.			

12.3	 Deferred 		

Since the merger of Nafees Cotton Mills Limited and Nafees Spinning Mills Limited into 
Azgard Nine Limited (Formerly Legler Nafees Denim Mills Limited) from April 01, 2002, 
there is trend of increase in export sales including indirect exports. The export sales 
(including indirect exports) during the year ending September 30, 2004 achieved the 
threshold of presumptive tax and the trend is expected to continue in foreseeable future. 
Accordingly, no provision for deferred tax has been made.					

12.4	 Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit							
2004	 2003 					

%	 %			

Applicable tax rate		 35.00 	 35.00 		
Tax effect of amounts that are:				
   - non deductible for tax purposes		 15.31	 20.70 		
   - allowable for tax purposes		 (41.88)	 (47.40)		
Tax effect of brought forward losses		 (8.43)	 (3.00)			

Effect of tax rates under presumptive tax regime	 5.05 	 2.43 			
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of 		
   previous period		 – 	 0.42 

 		 Effective tax rate for the year		 5.05 	 8.15 

13	 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS	

CONTINGENCIES				

13.1	 Azgard Nine Limited (Formerly Legler Nafees Denim Mills Ltd) (the Company) was 
denied exemption by the customs department under SRO 484(I)/92 from levy of 
customs duty and sales tax on certain plant and machinery. The Company filed an 
appeal in the High Court, which was decided in its favour. The department has filed 
an appeal against the same in the supreme court. In case of adverse decision the 
maximum liability is likely to rise to Rs.9.40 million approximately. No provision has 
been made in these accounts since the Company expects a favourable outcome.	

13.2	 The Company filed a constitutional petition in the Sind High Court against the 
Customs Authorities. The case had been referred back to the Collector of Customs 
through Central Board of Revenue and is still pending. The disputed amount of 
Rs.1,293,061 has already been deposited with the Sind High Court hence no 
additional liability is expected to arise.			

13.3	 The Company imported textile machinery availing exemption from customs duty and 
sales tax on importation thereof under various SROs. The claim subject to fulfilment 
of certain conditions aggregates Rs. 68.156 million (2003: Rs. 64.756 million).
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           13.4	 The Company has filed an appeal before the Lahore High Court for recovery of its 
claim from the Insurance Companies amounting to Rs. 2,462,187 (2003: Rs. 
2,462,187). The appeal is pending for adjudication.			

13.5	 Refer contents of note 3.3.					

COMMITMENTS 		

13.6	 Counter guarantees given by the Company to its bankers outstanding as at 30 
September, 2004 were for Rs.0.102 million (2003: Rs. 0.102 million).			

13.7	 Commitments against irrevocable letters of credit outstanding as at 30 September, 
2004 amount to Rs.300 million (2003:Rs.334.77 million).	

13.8	 Attention is also drawn to the commitment made for payment of dividend to 
shareholders as referred in note 3.4.

				Cost / Revaluation					 Depreciation           		 Net Book    	
Particulars	 As at	 Additions	 Leased		 As at	 Rate	 To	 For	 On	 to	 Value as at		

30 September,	 during the	 assets	 Disposals	 30 September,	 %	 September	 the	 disposals/	 30 September,	 30 September, 		
2003	 year	 transfers		 2004		 30, 2003	 year	 transfers	 2004	 2004

Owned:											
Freehold land						  						

– Cost	 269,167,648 	 68,470,000 	 – 	 – 	 337,637,648 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 337,637,648 	
– Revaluation	 8,442,352 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 8,442,352 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 8,442,352 		

277,610,000 	 68,470,000 	 – 	 – 	 346,080,000 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 346,080,000 
Buildings on 												

freehold land												
– Cost	 230,344,068 	 54,213,418 	 – 	 – 	 284,557,486 	 5.0 	 48,280,802 	 11,813,835 	 – 	 60,094,637 	 224,462,849 	
– Revaluation	 19,455,864 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 19,455,864 	 5.0 	 1,434,870 	 901,050 	 – 	 2,335,920 	 17,119,944 		

249,799,932 	 54,213,418 	 – 	 – 	 304,013,350 		 49,715,672 	 12,714,885 	 – 	 62,430,557 	 241,582,793 
Plant and machinery												

– Cost	 1,599,582,863 	 535,654,260 	 82,379,977 	 – 	 2,217,617,100 	 7.5 	 421,088,517 	 110,324,941 	 38,275,856 	 569,689,314 	 1,647,927,786 	
– Revaluation	 386,225,258 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 386,225,258 	 7.5 	 82,439,080 	 22,783,963 	 – 	 105,223,043 	 281,002,215 		

1,985,808,121 	 535,654,260 	 82,379,977 	 – 	 2,603,842,358 		 503,527,597 	 133,108,904 	 38,275,856 	 674,912,357 	 1,928,930,001 												

Furniture and fittings	 7,598,848 	 2,945,141 	 – 	 – 	 10,543,989 	 10.0 	 2,805,388 	 773,860 	 – 	 3,579,248 	 6,964,741 
Vehicles	 5,891,122 	 1,711,641 	 9,187,796 	 1,690,500 	 15,100,059 	 20.0 	 3,183,833 	 1,824,262 	 2,794,913 	 7,803,008 	 7,297,051 
Tools and equipment	 2,608,229 	 986,319 	 – 	 – 	 3,594,548 	 10.0 	 1,812,682 	 322,974 	 – 	 2,135,656 	 1,458,892 
Office equipments	 19,563,389 	 19,439,325 	 – 	 – 	 39,002,714 	 10.0 	 4,541,015 	 3,301,382 	 – 	 7,842,397 	 31,160,317 
Electrical installations	 32,325,405 	 25,253,657 	 – 	 – 	 57,579,062 	 10.0 	 10,505,316 	 4,707,375 	 – 	 15,212,691 	 42,366,371 		

 	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  		
2,581,205,046 	 708,673,761 	 91,567,773 	 1,690,500 	 3,379,756,080 		 576,091,503 	 156,753,642 	 41,070,769 	 773,915,914 	 2,605,840,166 

Leased:												

Plant and machinery	 230,395,038 	 63,954,008 	 (82,379,977)	 – 	 211,969,069 	 7.5 	 1,380,080 	 18,274,188 	 (38,275,856)	 (18,621,588)	 230,590,657 
Vehicles	 23,524,574 	 2,887,666 	 (9,187,796)	 – 	 17,224,444 	 20.0 	 6,315,084 	 2,876,394 	 (3,472,613)	 5,718,865 	 11,505,579 		

 	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  		
253,919,612 	 66,841,674 	 (91,567,773)	 – 	 229,193,513 		 7,695,164 	 21,150,582 	 (41,748,469)	 (12,902,723)	 242,096,236 

2004 Rupees	 2,835,124,658 	 775,515,435 	 – 	 1,690,500 	 3,608,949,593 	  	 583,786,667 	 177,904,224 	 (677,700)	 761,013,191 	 2,847,936,402 												

2003 Rupees	 2,379,070,961 	 463,663,132 	 – 	 7,609,435 	 2,835,124,658 	  	 441,003,456 	 147,403,006 	 (4,619,795)	 583,786,667 	 2,251,337,991 												

14.1	 Land, building and plant and machinery have been revalued in 2002 by an independent valuer M/s. Blue Feathers affiliations. These assets were revalued on the basis of present replacement depreciated values.	

14.2	 Disposal of operating fixed assets																

              Particulars	 Cost	 Accumulated	 Book value	 Sale	 Gain 	 Mode of 	 Particulars of purchaser	  			
 		 depreciation		 proceeds		 disposal	  		  				

              Vehicles				 – 	 –  					  	
                       Honda Civic	 1,150,500 	 414,180 	 736,320 	 1,002,325 	 266,005 	 Company's car scheme	 Mr. Tariq Saddat (Ex–Employee)				

                 Suzuki Cultus	 540,000 	 263,520 	 276,480 	 276,480 	 –  	 Company's car scheme	 Mr. Rizwan Zahoor – (Employee)

 	                 Rupees	 1,690,500 	 677,700 	 1,012,800 	 1,278,805 	 266,005 																							

14.3	 Depreciation for the year has been apportioned as under:		 2004 	 2003 													
Rupees 	 Rupees 										

Cost of sales				 164,167,467 	 140,383,061  							
Administrative and selling expenses			 6,338,324 	 7,019,945  							
Capitalised during the year				 7,398,433 	 –   														

177,904,224 	 147,403,006  

14.	 OPERATING FIXED ASSETS
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				2004	 2003 			
Note	 Rupees	 Rupees

15	 CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS				

Buildings on freehold land 				
–  Advance payments		 22,060,697	 5,750,000 	

Plant and machinery		
–  Letters of credit cost 		 62,231,641	 69,567,862 		
–  Other payments		 – 	 7,097,162 				

62,231,641	 76,665,024 				

84,292,338	 82,415,024 
16	 INTANGIBLE ASSETS				

Development costs	 16.1 	 81,187,908	 –  	
Textile quota	 16.2 	 – 	 –  				

81,187,908	 –  	
ERP – Oracle financial 	 16.3 	 7,187,681	 –  				

88,375,589	 –  		

16.1	 This relates to expenditure on development of new products to gain competitive 
advantage in the national and international market. The management plans to continue 
this policy and increase research and development spending in the times to come.			

16.2	 Textile quota 				
Opening balance		 24,469,044	 24,221,128 	
Add: Purchases during the year		 23,413,271	 23,985,789 				

47,882,315	 48,206,917 	
Less: Amortisation of textile quota		 22,964,732	 23,737,873 

 				 24,917,583	 24,469,044 		
Less:  Current portion grouped	 		
   under current assets		 24,917,583	 24,469,044 				

– 	 –  	

16.3	 This represents cost relating to implementation of oracle financial, which is under 
process as at balance sheet date. 		

17	 LONG TERM INVESTMENTS		
Investment in foreign subsidiary		
   Nafees International Tekstil Sanay ve		 		

Ticaret ANONIM SIRKET		 1,650,720	 –  	
10 billion fully paid ordinary shares		
   of Turkish Lira 1 million each				
Equity held 51%		

                Value of investment is based on the net assets 			
      shown in the reviewed accounts as at		
      Sept 30, 2004 is Rs 2.855 million ( 2003: Nil )	

Available for sale:		
Quoted			
BSJS Balanced Fund Ltd.	  	  	  	
1,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each.		 10,000	 –  	

Appreciation in value of investment		 600	 –  	
Market value Rs. 10.60 per share (2003: –) 	

 	  		 10,600	 –  	

Colony Textile Mills Ltd.	
456 (2003: 456) ordinary shares of Rs.10 each		 8,664	 8,664 	

Diminution in value of investment		 456	 1,824 	
Market value Rs. 18 per share (2003: Rs. 15)				

8,208	 6,840 	

Unquoted		
National Security Insurance Co. Ltd.		
221,504 (2003:221,504) ordinary 		
   shares of Rs.10 each		 910,345	 910,345 	
   Equity held 12.66% (2003: 12.66%)		
Appreciation in value of investment		 86,423	 1,747,703 				

996,768	 2,658,048 	

 			 2,666,296	 2,664,888 
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				2004	 2003 			
Note	 Rupees	 Rupees

18	 LONG TERM DEPOSITS	    	

Opening balance		 3,649,720 	 3,649,720 	
Cost incurred during the year		 14,868,110 	 –  				

18,517,830 	 3,649,720 

19	 STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS 				
Store			 50,503,425 	 33,097,125 	
Spares		 21,443,068 	 12,128,501 	
Loose tools		 662,200 	 552,170 				

72,608,693 	 45,777,796 	

19.1	 Included in stores and spares are items in transit valuing Rs 0.750 million (2003: 
Rs.0.659 million). 			

19.2	 The Company does not hold any stores and spares for specific capitalisation. 					

20	 STOCK IN TRADE 		

Raw materials 		 636,338,989 	 620,411,415 	
Work in process		 220,379,606 	 172,868,794 	
Finished goods		 537,888,016 	 472,080,704 	
Waste			 122,719 	 416,188 				

1,394,729,330 	 1,265,777,101 		

20.1	 Included in raw materials are stocks in transit valuing Rs. 75 million (2003:Rs.55.396 
million) and stocks in Customs Bond Rs.Nil (2003:Rs.14.715 Million).	

20.2	 Stocks amounting to Rs.160.146 million (2003: Rs.140.53 million) have been 
pledged as security with various banks against financing facilities.		

21	 TRADE DEBTS 	

Considered good: 		

Secured	 21.1	 631,503,900 	 277,196,084 	
Un–secured 		 313,607,956 	 259,420,000 	
Considered doubtful 		 4,249,348 	 4,249,348 				

949,361,204 	 540,865,432 	

Less: 	Provision for doubtful debts		 (4,249,348)	 (4,249,348)				

945,111,856 	 536,616,084 			

21.1	 These are secured by letter of credit. These include receivable from Nafees 
International (subsidiary Company) amounting to Rs.102,891,846 ( 2003:Rs.Nil ).		

22	 ADVANCES, DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 		

Advances – Unsecured considered good
 	     To employees 	 22.1 & 22.2	 19,357,526 	 9,211,008 	

    To suppliers, contractors and others		 158,543,173 	 96,803,745 	
Security deposit		 9,314,906 	 –  	
Margin deposits 	 22.3	 201,562,598 	 260,938,883 	
Prepayments		 8,873,451 	 3,809,852 	
Export rebate receivable 		 26,624,906 	 16,219,675 	
Sales tax recoverable		 141,957,831 	 82,270,385 	
Textile quota		 24,917,583 	 24,469,044 	
Letters of credit 		 26,571,132 	 41,712,951 	
Tax deducted at source / tax refundable		 85,906,387 	 60,630,440 	
Octroi refundable		 2,778,781 	 77,432 	
Insurance claim	 13.4	 2,462,187 	 2,462,187 	
Other receivables – Unsecured, 		

considered good		 4,052,709 	 11,122,565 	

 			 712,923,170 	 609,728,167 
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	22.1	 Advances to employees are against purchase and other expenses on Company's 
behalf. The maximum aggregate debit balance outstanding during the year at any 
month end was Rs.3.50 million (2003: Rs.4.938 million).	

22.2	 No advances have been given to chief executive / directors during the year.	

22.3	 It represents deposits against letters of credit and other working capital utilised.

23	 SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS		 2004       	 2003       				
Rupees   	 Rupees	

Held for trading	
Quoted		
Bank of Punjab		

458,000 ordinary shares of Rs.10 each		 29,355,786 	 – 		
Equity held 0.036%  		

Appreciation in value of investment		 995,875 	 – 		
Market value Rs.66.27 per share					

30,351,661 	 –  	

National Bank of Pakistan		
434,000 ordinary shares of Rs.10 each		 29,152,758 	 – 		
Equity held 0.0088% 

 		 Appreciation in value of investment		 849,662 	 – 		
Market value Rs.69.13 per share				

30,002,420 	 – 		

Pakistan Telecommunication Co. Ltd				
1,111,500 ordinary shares of Rs.10 each		 43,688,699 	 – 	

   	 Equity held 0.0029% 		

Appreciation in value of investment		 5,106,151 	 – 		
Market value Rs.43.90 per share				

48,794,850 	 – 				

109,148,931 	 – 
24	 CASH AND BANK BALANCES	

Cash in hand 		 2,556,878 	 505,615 	
Cash at banks	
current accounts 		 9,563,317 	 7,995,737 	
saving accounts		 8,787,582 	 13,100,398 				

18,350,899 	 21,096,135 				

20,907,777 	 21,601,750 						

24.1	 Cash at banks on saving accounts include foreign currency balances of US $ 
132,764 (2003: US $ 117,527) which have been converted into pak rupees at the 
exchange rate prevailing on the balance sheet date i.e. US $ 1= Rs. 59.35 (2003:US 
$ 1=Rs. 57.90).		

25	 SALES –Net 		

Local 		 1,613,246,671 	 1,044,399,750	
Export (including indirect export) 

                     – net of export development 		
surcharge amounting to Rs.3,484,649 		
to (2003: Rs. 49,803) and exchange 		
gain of Rs.13,221,017 		
(2003:Rs. 336,182)		 1,652,820,064 	 1,616,709,320 	

Waste			 33,097,303 	 27,893,059 

 				 3,299,164,038 	 2,689,002,129				

Less: 	Commission to selling agents – Local 		 3,501,456 	 19,767,020	
                                               – Export 		 34,874,588 	 25,238,015	
Sales tax 		 94,596,501 	 214,341,443	
Brokerage and discounts		 10,279,066 	 1,528,469				

143,251,611 	 260,874,947				

3,155,912,427 	 2,428,127,182
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				2004	 2003 			
Note	 Rupees	 Rupees

26	 COST OF SALES				

Raw materials and other direct 	
   materials consumed		 1,748,032,339 	 1,295,156,696 	
Salaries, wages and benefits		 283,661,014 	 242,241,067 	
Fuel and power		 189,237,711 	 179,509,434 	
Store and spares consumed		 48,628,540 	 51,287,245 	
Travelling ,conveyance and entertainment 		 16,704,076 	 10,404,724 	
Rent, rates and taxes		 2,070,589 	 891,850 	
Insurance		 6,792,699 	 7,570,049 	
Repair and maintenance		 10,793,306 	 12,686,129 	
Processing charges		 17,529,443 	 66,327,990 	
Depreciation	 14.3	 164,167,467 	 140,383,061 	
Printing & stationery 		 710,526 	 1,097,236 	
Communications		 2,530,894 	 899,435 	
Others		 6,921,232 	 5,909,612 				

2,497,779,836 	 2,014,364,528 	

Adjustment of work in process		

Opening		 172,868,794 	 92,181,376 	
Closing		 (220,379,606)	 (172,868,794)				

(47,510,812)	 (80,687,418)	

Cost of goods manufactured		 2,450,269,024 	 1,933,677,110 		

Adjustment of finished goods					

Opening		 472,496,892 	 267,739,214 	
Purchases		 56,024,092 	 53,104,588 	
Closing		 (538,010,735)	 (472,496,892)				

(9,489,751)	 (151,653,090)				

2,440,779,273 	 1,782,024,020 				

26.1 	 Salaries, wages and benefits include contribution to provident fund amounting to 
Rs. 6,117,233 (2003: Rs. 1,156,042) and gratuity expense for the year as mentioned 
in note 8.		

27	 ADMINISTRATIVE AND SELLING EXPENSES 				

Salaries and benefits		 52,250,069 	 43,643,109 	
Travelling and conveyance including 	
   chief executive/directors'	
travelling Rs 9,887,430 (2003:Rs.2,301,611)		 16,005,579 	 15,846,810 	
Power and fuel 		 1,580,446 	 –  	
Repair and maintenance		 2,514,315 	 1,716,519 	
Rent, rates and taxes		 1,247,250 	 131,064 	
Insurance		 450,145 	 2,068,135 	
Freight and clearing	
charges		 48,598,511 	 74,274,831 	
Printing and	
stationery		 2,114,502 	 2,675,448 	
Communications		 11,295,398 	 15,724,895 	
Advertisement and sales promotion		 6,829,196 	 1,876,929 	
Legal and professional charges	 27.1	 2,127,432 	 671,114 	
Depreciation	 14.3	 6,338,324 	 7,019,945 	
Amortisation of textile quota 		 22,964,732 	 23,907,556 	
Fees and subscription		 2,636,288 	 4,837,188 	
Others		 8,160,361 	 5,038,561 				

185,112,548 	 199,432,104 
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				2004	 2003 				
Rupees	 Rupees	

27.1	 Legal and professional charges					
The charges for professional services 	

 	    include the following in respect of 		
   auditor's services for: 		
      Audit		 185,000	 150,000	
      Tax and other services		 30,000	 – 				

215,000	 150,000	

28	 OTHER INCOME 				

Financial assets		
Gain on sale of investments		 1,192,320	 – 	
Unrealised gain on investments held for trading		 6,951,688	 – 	
Return on bank deposits		 710,367 	 665,073 	
Exchange gain		 – 	 120,797	
Others 				
Gain on sale of fixed assets		 266,005	 – 	
Miscellaneous		 744,411	 267,180	

 			 9,864,791	 1,053,050	

29	 FINANCIAL CHARGES 				

Interest on: 		
Long term loans – Secured		 – 	 34,091,394	
Workers' Profit Participation Fund		 818,980	 658,827		

Mark up on:			
Long term financing – Secured		 23,198,011	 12,325,396	
Short term borrowings –Secured 		 74,804,694	 92,710,325		

Lease finance charges		 16,644,210	 25,919,965	
Guarantee commission and bank charges		 8,242,486	 19,935,249 	

 			 123,708,381	 185,641,156

30	 OTHER CHARGES	

Loss on disposal of fixed assets		 – 	 390,008 	
Donations		 110,944	 176,750 	
Provision for diminution in value of investments		 456	 – 	

 			 111,400	 566,758				

30.1	 Recipients of donations do not include any donee in whom any director or his / her 
spouse has any interest.
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		31	 EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)		 2004	

Basic			 Rupees	

Net profit after tax		 373,984,342				

No. of shares	

Number of ordinary shares		 86,865,434				

Rupees  	
EPS 							

4.31	
Diluted				

Net profit after tax		 373,984,342 		
Potential Preference dividend to be issued		 319,498 		
Profit available for ordinary shareholders 		 374,303,840 						

No. of shares				

Number of ordinary shares		 86,865,434 		
Potential Number of ordinary shares to be issued 	 242,747 		
Total number of ordinary shares		 87,108,181 								

Rupees   					

EPS		 4.30 				

2003				
Rupees	

Basic			
Profit available for ordinary shareholders		 228,188,046				

No. of shares	
Number of ordinary shares 						

86,865,434 				

Rupees  		

EPS 		 2.63				

Diluted				
There was no dilutive effect on EPS of the Company.
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 32	 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND EXECUTIVES	

The aggregate amount charged in the accounts for remuneration, including all benefits, 
to the Chief Executive, Directors and Executives of the Company is as follows:						

Chief Executive 	 Directors 	 Executives 	  			

2004 	 2003 	 2004 	 2003 	 2004 	 2003 			
Rupees 	 Rupees 	 Rupees 	 Rupees 	 Rupees 	 Rupees 	

Managerial remuneration								
Basic salary 	 1,799,604 	 600,000 	 1,379,340 	 599,602 	 6,192,766 	29,002,252 		
House rent	 240,000 	 270,000 	 551,726 	 239,836 	 2,115,980 	10,556,456 		
Utilities	 60,000 	 30,000 	 137,938 	 59,962 	 564,793 	 3,472,631 		
Leave encashment 	 60,000 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 19,911 	 3,090,983 	

Retirement benefits	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 714,689 	 4,061,135 	
Bonus		 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 1,388,518 	 2,445,390 			

2,159,604 	 900,000 	 2,069,004 	 899,400 	10,996,657 	52,628,847 	

Number of persons	 1	 1	 4 	 1 	 9 	 152 										

32.1	 The Companies Ordinance, 1984 has revised the definition of an Executive in the 
current year. Currently an employee, other than Chief Executive and Directors, 
whose basic salary exceeds five hundred thousand rupees (2003: one hundred 
thousand rupees) in a financial year is considered to be an Executive. Consequential 
to the above revision nine (2003: 152) employees of the Company fall under the 
definition of an Executive.			

32.2	 In addition to above the Chief Executive has been provided with free use of the 
Company maintained car. None (2003: None) of the Directors/Executives have been 
provided with the Company maintained cars.	

32.3	 No fee has been paid to the directors during the year (2003: NIL).									

2004 	 2003 				
Rupees 	 Rupees 			

33	 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES 				

Retainer ship fee		 1,189,718 	 – 	
Underwriting fee		 26,059,631 	 – 	
Brokerage		 230,975 	 – 	
Mark–up paid		 833,912 	 – 	
Misc. expenses		 445,818 	 – 	
Sales			 118,284,677 	 – 	

The maximum aggregate amount due from associated undertakings at the end of any month 
during the year was Rs.102.892 million (2003:Rs.Nil).	

There were no receivables or payables to related parties other than those referred in 
notes 10.3 and 21.1.
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				2004   	 2003 

34	 CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION 			

Spinning		

No. of Rotors installed			 1,272 	 792 		
Plant capacity on the basis of utilization 		
converted into 6.5s count 		 –Kgs. 	 6,382,842 	 4,828,136 		
(based on 3 shifts per day)			
Actual production converted 		
into 6.5s count                          	 34.1	 –Kgs. 	 5,145,768 	 3,839,392 				

No. of Spindles installed 			 39,024 	 35,024 		
Plant capacity on the basis of 		
utilization converted into 20s count 		 –Kgs. 	 10,570,050 	 10,414,516 		
(based on 3 shifts per day) 						
Actual production converted 		
into 20s count                               	  34.2	 –Kgs. 	 9,561,801 	 10,025,432 	

Weaving		
No. of Looms installed			 93 	 84 		
Annual rated capacity on the 		
basis of utilization – at 38 picks 		 –Mtrs. 	 15,222,452 	 14,232,000 		
(based on 3 shifts per day) 					
Actual production – at 38 picks 		 –Mtrs. 	 13,871,935 	 13,809,550 		

Garments		
No. of Stitching machines installed			 287 	 106 		
Annual capacity on the basis of utilization	 –Pcs. 	 2,400,000 	 1,310,660 		
(based on 2 shifts per day) 					
Actual production 		 –Pcs. 	 1,583,414 	 1,166,662 						

34.1	 Reduced requirement of open end yarn in the fabric produced during the year 
resulted in under utilisation of production capacity.			

34.2	 It is difficult to describe precisely the production capacity in the textile industry 
since it fluctuates widely depending on various factors such as count of yarn 
spun, spindles speed, twist and raw materials used etc. It also varies according 
to the pattern of production adopted in particular period.				

2004   	 2003 				
Rupees   	 Rupees 

35 	 CHANGES IN WORKING CAPITAL		

(Increase) in current assets							

     Stores, spares and loose tools		 (26,830,897)	 (24,089,037)	
     Stock in trade		 (128,952,229)	 (543,400,878)	
     Trade debts		 (408,495,772)	 (3,148,297)	
     Advances, deposits, prepayments and	
        other receivables (excluding income tax)		 (77,470,517)	 (325,635,533) 	

(Decrease)/increase in current liabilities	

     Creditors, accrued and other liabilities	
        (excluding accrued financial charges)		 (73,386,416)	 240,852,463 				

(715,135,831)	 (655,421,282)



ANNUAL REPORT 2004 51

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

36	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS	

36.1	 Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability 
settled between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length transaction. As 
at September 30, 2004 the net fair value of all financial instruments has been 
based on the valuation methodology outlined below:			

Long–term deposits		

Long term deposits does not carry any rate of return. Therefore it has been taken 
at book value as it is not considered materially different and readily exchangeable.		

Non–current liabilities		

For all non–current liabilities the fair values have been taken at book values as 
these are not considered materially different based on the current market rates 
of return and repricing profiles of similar non–current liabilities.		

Other financial instruments			

The fair values of all other financial instruments are considered to approximate 
their book values as they are short term in nature.	

36.2	 Financial assets and liabilities 				

Interest 	 Interest / mark–up bearing 	 Non interest / mark–up bearing 	  			

mark–up 	 Maturity 	 Maturity 	 Sub–total 	 Maturity 	 Maturity 	 Sub–total 	  			
rates range 	 upto one 	 after one 	  	 upto one 	 after one 	  	  			

% per 	 year 	 year 	  	 year 	 year 	  	 Total			
annum 	  	  	  	  	  	  	  			

( R  U  P  E  E  S )  	 	
Financial assets:										
Long term investments				 – 		 2,666,296 	 2,666,296 	 2,666,296 		
Trade debtors				 – 	 945,111,856 		 945,111,856 	 945,111,856 		
Advances, deposits and										
other receivables				 – 	 55,276,109 		 55,276,109 	 55,276,109 		
Short term investments				 – 	 109,148,931 		 109,148,931 	 109,148,931 		
Cash and bank balances	 1% to 3.5%	 8,787,582 		 8,787,582 	 12,120,195 		 12,120,195 	 20,907,777 		

               2004:	  	 8,787,582 	 – 	 8,787,582 	 1,121,657,091 	 2,666,296 	 1,124,323,387 	 1,133,110,969 		

               2003:	  	 13,100,398 	 – 	 13,100,398 	 584,210,302 	 8,344,638 	 592,554,940 	 605,655,338 		
Financial liabilities:										
Long term financing	 4.75% to 8.00%	 300,000,000 	 750,000,000 	 1,050,000,000 			 – 	 1,050,000,000 		
Liabilities against assets										
subject to finance lease	 6.75% to 19.00%	 63,081,881 	 116,503,819 	 179,585,700 			 – 	 179,585,700 		
Long term deposits and										
payables					 1,147,729 		 1,147,729 	 1,147,729 		
Short term borrowings	 1.60% to 8.00%			 – 	 1,492,909,892 		 1,492,909,892 	 1,492,909,892 		
Creditors, accrued and other										
liabilities				 – 	 601,321,068 		 601,321,068 	 601,321,068		
Unclaimed dividend				 – 	 95,414 		 95,414 	 95,414 		

               2004:	  	 363,081,881 	 866,503,819 	 1,229,585,700 	 2,095,474,103 	 – 	 2,095,474,103 	 3,325,059,803		

               2003:	  	 1,589,454,634 	 803,859,601 	 2,393,314,235 	 703,480,663 	 6,388,502 	 709,869,165 	 3,103,183,400 												

Off balance sheet items:										
Commitments		 – 	 – 	 – 	 300,000,000 	 – 	 300,000,000 	 300,000,000 		
Guarantee		 – 	 – 	 – 	 102,000 	 – 	 102,000 	 102,000 		

               2004:	  	 – 	 – 	 – 	 300,102,000 	 – 	 300,102,000 	 300,102,000 		

               2003:	  	 – 	 – 	 – 	 334,872,000 	 – 	 334,872,000 	 334,872,000 											

36.3	 Foreign exchange risk management 				

Foreign currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exists due to 
transactions entered into foreign currency. The Company incurs foreign currency 
risk on sales, purchases and borrowings that are entered in a currency other than 
Pak Rupees. The Company enters into forward contracts to guard against exchange 
fluctuation and as such exposure to foreign exchange risk is minimal.
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	36.4	 Concentration of credit risk 			

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognised at the 
reporting date if counter parties failed completely to perform as contracted. To 
reduce exposure to credit risk, the Company has developed formal approval process 
whereby credit limits are applied to customers. The management also continuously 
monitors the credit exposure toward the customers and make provisions against 
these balances considered doubtful of recovery. Out of total financial assets of 
Rs. 1,133 million (2003: 605.66 million), the financial assets which are subject 
to credit risk aggregated Rs. 423.00 million (2003:Rs.605.15 million). The Company 
believes that it is not exposed to major concentration of credit risk. 	

36.5	 Interest risk management 			

Interest rate risk represents the value of a financial instrument which will fluctuate 
due to changes in market interest rate. Since the Company borrows most of the 
funds at fixed interest rate, exposure to interest rate risk is minimal.	

36.6	 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities 				
The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial 
statements approximate to their fair values.

37	 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 				

Number of permanent employees as at September 30, 2004 was 4,512 (2003: 4,511).

38	 DIVIDEND	

Directors have proposed 10% cash dividend i.e. rs. 1 per ordinary share to be approved 
by the shareholders in ensuing Annual General Meeting to be held on 31 January 2005. 
Total amount of cash dividend to be paid is Rs. 86,865,434 which has not been accounted 
for as liability in these financial statements.

39	 DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE	

These financial statements were authorised for issue on December 28, 2004 by the Board 
of Directors of the Company.

40	 FIGURES	

– 	 On change in accounting policy, assets (see note 2.19) amount included in deferred 
costs in 2003 have been reclassified as intangible assets. No other re–arrangement 
has been made in these accounts.	

– 	 Figures in the accounts have been rounded off nearest to rupee.	

Chief Executive	 Director
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AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

We have examined the annexed consolidated financial statements comprising Consolidated 

Balance Sheet of AZGARD NINE LIMITED (FORMERLY LEGLER NAFESS DENIM MILLS 

LIMITED), the Holding Company, and its subsidiary company as at September 30, 2004 

and the related consolidated Profit and Loss Account, consolidated Cash Flow Statement 

and consolidated statement of Changes in Equity together with the notes forming part 

thereof, for the year ended September 30, 2004. The financial statements of Nafees 

International Tekstil Sanays Ve Ticaret  ANONIM SIRKET are un audited but subject to 

limited review by another firm of Accountants for the period ended September 30, 2004 

whose report have been furnished to us and our opinion in so far as it relates to the 

amounts included for such company , is based solely on such limited review. These 

financial statements are the responsibility of the Holding Company’s management. Our 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our 

examination.

Our examination was made in accordance with International Standards on Auditing and 

accordingly included such tests of accounting records and such other auditing procedures, 

as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements examined by us subject to any 

adjustment that may have been required on audit and the financial statements of the 

subsidiary Company present fairly the financial position of AZGARD NINE LIMITED 

(FORMERLY LEGLER NAFESS DENIM MILLS LIMITED),   and its subsidiary company as at 

September 30, 2004 of the results of their operations for the year then ended.

Lahore	 M. YOUSUF ADIL SALEEM & CO.

Date: December 28, 2004	 Chartered Accountants
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AS AT SEPTEMBER 30, 2004

				2004	 2003			
Note	 Rupees	 Rupees				

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES					

Share capital	 3	 1,737,308,680	 868,654,340 	
Reserves	 4	 362,142,241	 251,042,854 	
Unappropriated profit 		 412,399,663	 161,710,634 				

2,511,850,584	 1,281,407,828 				

MINORITY INTEREST		 2,742,560	 – 

SURPLUS ON REVALUATION	
OF FIXED ASSETS	 5	 306,564,511	 330,249,524 				

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES			

LONG TERM FINANCING - Secured	 6	 750,000,000	 650,000,000 				

LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT	
TO FINANCE LEASE	 7	 116,503,819	 143,704,801 				

DEFERRED LIABILITY - Staff gratuity	 8	 –	 25,512,837 				

LONG TERM DEPOSITS 	 9	 1,147,729	 6,388,502 				

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current portion of:		  			
Long term financing - Secured	 6	 300,000,000	 100,000,000 	
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease	 7	 63,081,881	 60,798,533 

Short term borrowings	 10	 1,492,909,892	 1,428,656,101 
Creditors, accrued and other liabilities	 11	 701,845,741	 747,929,841 
Provision for taxation	 12	 64,824,871	 44,824,871 
Unclaimed dividends		 95,414	 95,683 				

2,622,757,799	 2,382,305,029 				

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS	 13							

6,311,567,002	 4,819,568,521 

The annexed notes form an integral part of these accounts.													

Chief Executive
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				2004	 2003			
Note	 Rupees	 Rupees				

NON-CURRENT ASSETS				

FIXED ASSETS		
OPERATING ASSETS	 14	 2,847,936,402	 2,251,337,991 	
CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS	 15	 89,759,126	 82,415,024 				

2,937,695,528	 2,333,753,015 								

INTANGIBLE ASSETS	 16	 88,375,589	 –  								

LONG TERM INVESTMENTS	 17	 1,015,576	 2,664,888 								

LONG TERM DEPOSITS	 18	 18,517,830	 3,649,720 

CURRENT ASSETS						
 		  

Stores, spares and loose tools	 19	 72,608,693	 45,777,796 
Stock in trade	 20	 1,425,586,819	 1,265,777,101 
Trade debts	 21	 924,208,356	 536,616,084 
Advances, deposits, prepayments		  		
   and other receivables	 22	 713,461,070	 609,728,167 
Short term investments	 23	 109,148,931	 – 
Cash and bank balances	 24	 20,948,610	 21,601,750 				

3,265,962,479	 2,479,500,898 						

6,311,567,002	 4,819,568,521  															

Director
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNTS

For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

 				 2004	 2003			
Note	 Rupees	 Rupees 

SALES - Net	 25	 3,160,780,433	 2,428,127,182 					

COST OF SALES	 26	 2,440,779,273	 1,782,024,020 			
 		  

GROSS PROFIT		 720,001,160	 646,103,162 					

ADMINISTRATIVE AND SELLING EXPENSES	 27	 186,565,495	 199,432,104 			
 		  

OPERATING PROFIT		 533,435,665	 446,671,058 					

OTHER INCOME	 28	 9,864,791	 1,053,050 			
 		  				

543,300,456	 447,724,108 
OTHER CHARGES						

Financial charges	 29	 123,708,381	 185,641,156 	
Workers' Profit Participation Fund	 11.1	 20,803,281	 13,075,810 	
Others	 30	 111,400	 566,758 				

144,623,062	 199,283,724 					

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION		 398,677,394	 248,440,384 					

PROVISION FOR TAXATION	
Current	 12.1	 20,000,000	 20,252,338 					

PROFIT AFTER TAXATION		 378,677,394	 228,188,046

MINORITY INTEREST		 1,673,378	 – 

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO HOLDING COMPANY		 377,004,016	 228,188,046 					

EARNINGS PER SHARE - Basic	 31	 4.33	 2.63 
 	                                 - Diluted	 31	 4.32	 –  															

The annexed notes form an integral part of these accounts																																												

Chief Executive			 Director
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

				2004	 2003			
Note	 Rupees	 Rupees

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES				
Profit before taxation		 398,677,394 	 248,440,384 
Adjustment for:					

Depreciation		 170,505,791	 147,403,006 	
Amortization of intangible assets		 22,964,732	 23,907,556 	
Gain on sale of Investments		 (1,192,320)	 – 	
Unrealised gain on Investments		 (6,951,688)	 – 	
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of fixed assets		 (266,005)	 390,008 	
Exchange loss		 – 	 (120,797)	
Gratuity-net		 (25,512,837)	 5,704,555 	
Interest income		 (710,367)	 (665,073)	
Financial charges		 123,708,381	 184,976,083 				

282,545,687 	 610,035,722 
Long term deposits		 (14,868,110)	 (23,985,924)

Operating profit before working capital changes		 666,354,971	 586,049,798 						

Changes in working capital	 35	 (714,693,989)	 (655,421,282)

Cash flow from operations		 (48,339,018)	 (69,371,484)
Financial charges paid		 (106,270,614)	 (231,111,364)
Preliminary expenses on issuance of preference shares		 (37,241,757)	 – 
Taxes paid		 (25,275,947)	 (34,523,268)

NET CASH (OUTFLOW) FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES		 (217,127,336)	 (103,894,752)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES	
Fixed capital expenditure		 (775,461,104)	 (546,078,156)	
Intangible assets		 (111,788,860)	 –  		
Sale proceeds of fixed assets		 1,278,805 	 2,599,632 	
Sale proceeds of short term investments		 1,192,320 	 – 		
Long term Investments		 (9,544)	 – 	
Interest received		 710,367 	 665,073 	
Long term Deposits		 – 	 2,005,584 	
Short term Investments		 (102,197,243)	 – 

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES		 (986,275,259)	 (540,807,867)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES		  		
 	

Preference shares issued		 868,654,340 	 – 	
Repayment of long term deposits		 (5,240,773)	 (4,042,187)	
Long term financing obtained		 650,000,000 	 750,000,000 	
Repayment of long term loans		 (350,000,000)	 (370,163,877)	
Dividend paid		 (269)	 – 	
Short term finances- net		 64,253,791	 432,775,962 	
Finance lease liabilities paid		 (24,917,634)	 65,369,020 

NET CASH INFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES		 1,202,749,455 	 873,938,918 						

NET (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS		 (653,140)	 (1,875,065)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS	

AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR		 21,601,750 	 23,476,815 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR	 20,948,610 	 21,601,750 

Chief Executive			 Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

	Share Capital 	 Reserves 	 Unappropriated 	  	  	

Issued, 	 Shares 	 Share	 Reserve on	 Preference share	 Surplus on	  	 Profit / 	 Total 	 Surplus on	

subscribed and 	 under 	 premium	 merger	 redemption	 revaluation of	 Total	 (Accumulated 	 equity 	 revaluation of	

paid–up 	 issue 	  	  	 reserve	 investments	  	 Loss) 	  	 fixed assets	

R  U  P  E  E  S  	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

Balance as at October 1, 2002– Restated 	360,534,420 	 508,119,590 	 143,675,125 	 105,152,335 	 – 	 – 	 248,827,460 	 (92,057,197)	 1,025,424,273 	 355,829,309 													

Profit for the year 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 		 – 	 228,188,046 	 228,188,046 	 – 	

Ordinary shares issued 	 508,119,590 	 (508,119,590)	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	

Adjustment of fractional amount 
    on issue of shares 	 330 	 – 	 – 	 (330)	 – 	 – 	 (330)	 – 	 – 	 – 	

Surplus on revaluation of fixed 
   assets transferred to 						 – 	 – 		 – 	 – 	
   retained earnings during the year 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 25,579,785 	 25,579,785 	 (25,579,785)	
Revaluation of investments 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 2,215,724 	 2,215,724 	 – 	 2,215,724 	 – 	

Balance as at September 30, 2003 	 868,654,340 	 – 	 143,675,125 	 105,152,005 	 – 	 2,215,724 	 251,042,854 	 161,710,634 	 1,281,407,828 	 330,249,524 	

Profit for the year 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 377,004,016 	 377,004,016 	 – 	

Preference shares issued 	 868,654,340 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 868,654,340 	 – 	

Surplus on revaluation of fixed 
   assets transferred to 											
   retained earnings during the year 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 23,685,013 	 23,685,013 	 (23,685,013)	

Preference shares redemption reserve 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 150,000,000 	 – 	 150,000,000 	 (150,000,000)	 – 		

Expenses incurred on issue of 
   preference shares 	 – 	 – 	 (37,241,757)	 – 	 – 	 – 	 (37,241,757)	 – 	 (37,241,757)		

Revaluation of investments 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 		 (1,658,856)	 (1,658,856)	 – 	 (1,658,856)	 – 	

Balance as at September 30, 2004 	 1,737,308,680 	 – 	 106,433,368 	 105,152,005 	 150,000,000 	 556,868 	 362,142,241 	 412,399,663 	 2,511,850,584 	 306,564,511 																									

The annexed notes form an integral part of these accounts																																																																						

Chief Executive			 Director
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS

For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

1	 STATUS AND ACTIVITIES	

The Group comprises the following business:		

The name of the Holding Company was changed from Legler Nafees Denim Mills 
Limited to Azgard Nine Limited (the Company) as on April 07, 2004. The Company 
was incorporated in Pakistan as a public limited Company and its shares are quoted 
at Karachi Stock Exchange (Guarantee) Limited. The Company is a composite spinning, 
weaving, dyeing and stitching unit engaged in the manufacturing of yarn, denim and 
denim products.		

Nafees International Tekstil Sanayi Ve Ticaret Anonim Sirketi: Representing sale 
of denim and denim products. The Company was incorporated in Turkey and principal 
activity of the company is sale of denim and denim products.			

2	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES		

2.1	 Statement of compliance		

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the approved 
accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies 
Ordinance, 1984 (the Ordinance). Approved accounting standards comprise of such 
International Accounting standards as notified under the provisions of the Ordinance. 
Where the requirements of the Ordinance or directives issued by the Securities and 
Exchange Commission of Pakistan differ with the requirements of these standards, 
the requirements of the Ordinance or the said directives take precedence. 					

2.2	 Accounting convention			

These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention except 
as referred in notes 2.6 and 2.13 relating to certain fixed assets that have been 
included at revalued amounts and certain financial instruments which are stated 
at fair value.	

2.3	 Basis of consolidation		

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Azgard Nine 
Limited and its foreign subsidiary.		

Subsidiaries are those enterprises in which parent company directly or indirectly 
controls, beneficially owns or holds more than 50 percent of the voting securities 
or otherwise has power to elect and appoint more than 50 percent of its directors. 
The financial statements of the subsidiary are included in the consolidated financial 
statements from the date control commences until the date that control ceases. 
The financial statements of subsidiary company has been consolidated on a line 
by line basis.					

All material inter-company balances, transactions and resulting unrealised 
profits/losses have been eliminated.		

Comparative amounts for the corresponding year relate to Azgard operations only.				

2.4	 Staff retirement benefits		

The Holding Company operated an unfunded gratuity scheme (defined benefit plan) 
covering all its permanent employees who had attained the minimum qualifying period. 
The management ceased the gratuity scheme during the year and replaced it with 
provident fund (defined contribution plan). The gratuity liability accruing till March 
31, 2004 has been transferred to provident fund.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS

For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

				Provision for gratuity was made annually to cover the obligation under the scheme 
in accordance with actuarial recommendations. Actuarial valuation of the scheme 
was carried out at September 30, 2002, using the projected unit credit method. 
The Company's policy with regard to actuarial gains/losses was to follow minimum 
recommended approach under IAS-19 'Employee Benefits'.		

Currently the Company operates an approved defined contributory provident fund 
for its employees. Equal contributions are made by employee and the Company @ 
8.5 % per month of basic pay.				

2.5	 Taxation		

Current		

Income tax expense represents the sum of current tax payable, adjustments, if any, 
to provision for tax made in prior years arising from assessments framed during 
the year for such years.		

Deferred				

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on all temporary timing differences 
at the balance sheet date between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their 
carrying amounts for financial statements' reporting purposes taking into 
consideration the implications of taxes payable under presumptive tax regime, if 
any.				

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that 
future taxable profits will be available against which these assets can be utilised.		

2.6	 Operating fixed assets and depreciation			

Operating fixed assets, except freehold land, are stated at cost or revalued 
amounts less accumulated depreciation. Freehold land is stated at revalued amount.		

Depreciation is charged to income for the year applying the reducing balance 
method. Amount equal to incremental depreciation charged during the year on 
revalued amount of assets has been transferred from surplus on revaluation of 
fixed assets to unappropriated profit/accumulated loss through statement of 
changes in equity. The adjustments made in this context and the amounts involved 
have been disclosed in note 5 of surplus on revaluation of fixed assets.				

The useful life and depreciation method are reviewed periodically to ensure that 
the method and period of depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern 
of economic benefits from items of fixed assets. Rates of depreciation are stated 
in note 14. No depreciation is provided on assets in the year of disposal, whereas 
full year's depreciation is charged in the year of purchase. Major additions or 
extensions to production facilities are depreciated on pro-rata basis for the period 
of use during the year.		

Capital work in progress is stated at cost.		

Gain or loss on disposal of operating fixed assets is included in current year's 
income. Normal maintenance and repairs are charged to current year's income as 
and when incurred. Major renewals, improvements and replacements are capitalised 
and assets so replaced, if not kept as stand by, are retired.



ANNUAL REPORT 2004 63

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS

For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

		2.7	 Leases		

Assets subject to finance lease are stated at lower of present value of minimum 
lease payments under lease agreements and the fair value of the assets less 
accumulated depreciation. Related obligations under the finance lease less financial 
charges allocated to future periods are shown as liabilities. Depreciation is charged 
at the rates specified in note 14 to write-off the assets over the estimated useful 
life in view of the certainty of the ownership of the assets at the end of the lease 
period.		

2.8	 Borrowing costs				

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production 
of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period 
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those 
assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended 
use or sale.		

All other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which 
these are incurred.				

2.9	 Intangible assets	

2.9.1	 Research and development		

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which 
it is incurred. Costs incurred on development projects (relating to design and 
testing of new or improved products) are recognised as intangible assets only if 
all of the following conditions are met;			

- an asset is created that can be identified			
- it is probable that the asset created will generate future economic 			
  benefits; and				
- the development cost of the asset can be measured reliably.							

All other development expenditures are recognised as an expense when incurred. 
Development costs previously recognised as an expense are not recognised as an 
asset in subsequent period. Development costs that have been capitalized are 
amortized from the commencement of the commercial production of the product 
on a straight line basis over the period of its expected benefits. The amortization 
period adopted does not exceed five years.	

2.9.2	 Others		

Other intangible assets are amortised over the period of their expected benefits. 
The amortisation period adopted does not exceed five years.	

2.9	 Investments		
All investments are initially recognized at cost, being fair value of the consideration 
given and including acquisition charges associated with investments and classified 
as whether held for trading or available for sale.
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		Subsequent to initial recognition, investments which are classified as held for 
trading and available for sale are measured at fair value. Investments held for 
trading are those which are either acquired for generating a profit from short 
term fluctuation in prices or dealer's margin, or are securities included in a portfolio 
in which a pattern of short term profit taking exists. Investments intended to be 
held for an indefinite period of time, which may be sold in response to needs for 
liquidity or change in interest rates are classified as available for sale. The 
investments are classified as non current unless management has intention of 
holding these for less than twelve months from the balance sheet date, in which 
case they are included as current assets.		

Gains and losses on investments held for trading are recognized in income. Gains 
and losses on investments available for sale are recognized as separate component 
of equity until investments are sold, disposed-off or until the investments are 
determined to be impaired, at which time accumulated gain/loss previously reported 
in equity is included in profit and loss account.		

All purchases and sales of investments are recognized on the trade date, which 
is the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the investments. 		

The fair value of publicly traded investment is based on quoted market prices at 
the balance sheet date. 	

2.10	 Stores, spares and loose tools				

These are valued at cost determined using first in first out (FIFO) method except 
items in transit which are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges 
paid thereon.		

2.11	 Stock in trade		

Basis of valuation are as follows:		

Raw materials			
   At mills	 - At lower of first in first out cost and net realisable value		
   In-transit	 - At cost accumulated to the balance sheet date		
Work in process	 - At lower of manufacturing cost and net realisable value		
Finished goods	 - At lower of manufacturing cost and net realisable value		
Waste	 - At net realisable value					

Average manufacturing cost in relation to work in process and finished goods 
includes prime cost and proportion of production overheads.					

Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in ordinary course of 
business less cost necessary to be incurred in order to make the sales.	

2.12	 Foreign currency translations			

Assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at the 
rates of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date, except those covered under 
forward exchange contracts which are stated at contracted rate. Exchange 
differences are included in profit and loss account currently.	

2.13	 Financial instruments	

2.13.1	Financial assets 		

All financial assets have been stated in accordance with the requirements of IAS-
39 (Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement). Financial assets are initially 
recognised at cost which is the fair value of the consideration given at initial 
recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets are carried at fair 
value except any financial assets whose fair value cannot be estimated reliably.

	

2.12	 Foreign currency translations			

Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at 
the rates of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date, except those covered under 
forward exchange contracts which are stated at contracted rate. Foreign currency 
transactions are translated into Pak Rupees at the rates prevailing at the date of 
transaction except for those covered by forward contracts, which are translated at 
contracted rates. Exchange differences are included in profit and loss account currently.
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		A 'regular way' purchase or sale of financial assets are recognised using trade 
date accounting.	

2.13.2	 Financial liabilities		

All financial liabilities are initially recognised at cost, which is the fair value of 
the consideration received at initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition 
financial liabilities are carried at fair value, amortised cost or cost as the case 
may be.	

2.13.3	De-recognition		

Financial assets are de-recognised when the Company loses control of the 
contractual rights that comprise the financial assets.		

Financial liabilities are de-recognised when they are extinguished, that is, when the 
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.		

Gain or loss, if any, on de-recognition and settlement of financial assets and 
liabilities is included in net profit or loss in the period in which it arises.	

2.13.4	Trade debtors		

Trade debtors are stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate allowances 
for estimated irrecoverable amounts, if any.					

2.13.5	Provisions		

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation 
as a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate 
of the amount can be made.	

2.13.6	Off setting		

Financial assets and financial liabilities are set-off and the net amount is reported 
in the financial statements when there is a legally enforceable right to set off 
and the Company intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets 
and to settle the liabilities simultaneously.	

2.13.7	Cash and cash equivalents		

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash-in-hand and balances with banks.		

2.14	 Impairment 			

The carrying amount of the Company's assets are reviewed at each balance sheet 
date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment loss. If any such 
indication exists, the assets are written down to their estimated recoverable amount 
and impairment losses are recognised in the net profit and loss account. Consequently, 
the depreciation charge is adjusted in the future period to allocate asset's revised 
carrying amount over its estimated useful life.		

2.15	 Creditors, accrued and other liabilities			

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the 
fair value of the consideration to be paid in future for goods and services.	

2.16	 Dividend		

Dividend on ordinary shares is recognised in equity in the period in which it is 
declared/paid.



66 AZGARD-9

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS

For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

	2.17	 Revenue recognition			

- Revenue from local sales is recognised on dispatch of goods to customers.			
- Revenue from export sales is recognised on shipment basis.			
- Export rebate is recognised when entitlement is established.			
- Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive payment 
   is established.	

2.18	 Related party transactions				

All transactions involving related parties arising in the normal course of business 
are conducted at arm's length using valuation modes, as admissible. Parties are 
said to be related when they meet the definition as provided in the Companies 
Ordinance, 1984.		

2.19	 Change in accounting policies			

Pursuant to changes in the fourth schedule to the Companies Ordinance, 1984, 
the following changes have been made in accounting policies as adopted by the 
Company:		

1)	 Costs formerly treated as deferred costs and charged to profit and loss 
account periodically have been reclassified as intangibles assets where they 
meet the definition of such assets. Other costs which have not been classified 
as intangibles are written off. (See note 2.8)		

2)	 The exchange differences arising on loans used for financing operating fixed 
assets previously capitalised, are now included in profit and loss account 
annually.		

3)	 No provision for proposed dividend is made instead the dividend is now 
recognised as per note 2.16.				

Impact on					
financial	 Nature of impact				

statements		

1)	 Deferred costs	               7.44 million	 Profit of the Company would 
have been lower by Rs. 7.44 
million and retained earnings 
would have been higher by 
Rs.29.8 million with 
corresponding effect on 
balance sheet assets.		

2)	 Exchange differences on foreign	 Nil           Adjustments in the carrying 			
currency borrowings			 value of plant and machinery, 

d u e  t o  e x c h a n g e  
fluctuations on foreign 
currency loans utilised for 
acquisition of	
such assets with effect on 
the depreciation for the 
year.		

3)	 Proposed dividend		 Nil       Appropriation of retained 				
earnings.
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			2004	 2003		
Note 	 Rupees	 Rupees 	

3	 SHARE CAPITAL 				
3.1	 Authorised capital		

300,000,000 (2003: 117,380,000) 		
ordinary and preference shares of Rs. 10/-each	 3,000,000,000	 1,173,800,000 		

Authorised capital of the Company has been increased to Rs. 3,000,000,000 divided into		
213,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each and 87,000,000 preference shares 		
of Rs. 10/- each.					

3.2	 Issued, subscribed and paid up capital:		

23,777,369		 Ordinary shares of 				
Rs.10/- each				
fully paid in cash	 237,773,690	 237,773,690 			

63,088,065		 Issued for consideration 				
other than cash	 630,880,650	 630,880,650 		

86,865,434			 868,654,340	 868,654,340 			

86,865,434		 Preference shares 				
of Rs.10/- each				
fully paid in cash			

 	 Issued during the year        3.3	 868,654,340	 – 		

86,865,434			 1,737,308,680	 868,654,340 	

3.3	 Azgard Nine Limited (The Company) issued cummulative preference shares during the year. These are 
non-voting, non-participatory, partly convertible and are redeemable in 6 years from the date of 
issuance. These are listed on Karachi Stock Exchange (Guarantee) Limited.	

Rate of dividend	

Annualised fixed dividend 	
    @ 8.95% per annum to be paid.	
In case of default in payment of dividend:	

default in payment during first year and	 Rate of dividend will be 9.75 % for first year, 	
paid regularly during subsequent years.	 total dividend for the year will be Rs. 1.87 per 		

share including 8.95% for second year.				

default in payment during second year and		 Rate of dividend will be 20.73 % for second year, 	
paid regularly during subsequent years.	 total dividend for the year will be Rs. 2.93 per			

share including 8.95% for third year.				

default in payment during third year and paid	 Rate of dividend will be 31.95 % for third year, 	
regularly during subsequent years.	 total dividend for the year will be Rs. 4.09			

per share including 8.95% for fourth year.				

default in payment during fourth year and	 Rate of dividend will be 44.56 % for fourth year, 	
paid regularly during subsequent years.	 total dividend for the year will be Rs. 5.35 per			

share including 8.95% for fifth year.		

default in payment during fifth year and	 Rate of dividend will be 58.30 % for fifth year, 	
paid regularly during subsequent years.	 total dividend for the year will be Rs. 6.73 per			

share including 8.95% for sixth year.					

At the end of year six, if the Company fails to pay dividend and/or redeem the principal in the manner 
mentioned below, the entire amount of the accrued dividend plus the face value of the outstanding 
preference share will be converted, at the option of preference shareholder, into ordinary shares 
at break-up value of the Company to be determined at that time.
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	Redemption option and timing	

Redemption will be allowed as follows subject to the provisions of Section 85 of the Companies 
Ordinance, 1984, as follows:		

50% of the issue amount at the end of fifth (5th) year of issuance/allotment;	
50% of the issue amount at the end of sixth (6th) year of issuance/allotment;		

Conversion/ Swap	

The preference shareholders may at their option convert up to 25% of the value of their respective 
preference shares into ordinary shares between eighteen and forty two months from the issue/ 
allotment at the conversion ratio of ten preference shares for 6.8 ordinary shares. Preference 
share-holders exercising their right of conversion will not receive any of remaining fixed coupon 
amounts on the converted amount.		

Redemption reserve	
The Company will create a redemption reserves of at least up to the amount of redemption of 
preference shares i.e. at least up to the amount of outstanding preference shares submitted for 
redemption by:		

– Allocating Rs.150 million of the reserves as at 30th September, 2004;		

– Appropriating profits of at least Rs 50 million each subsequent year to build up redemption 
  reserve;		

– Creating additional reserves to match the amount required for redemption.

3.4	 As a condition of approval of the scheme of arrangement, the Company has given an undertaking 
to the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan to pay dividends of 25% over a period of three 
years before September 30, 2005.			

2004	 2003		
 	 Rupees	 Rupees 	

4	 RESERVES	

Capital Reserves 		
Share premium on ordinary shares		 106,433,368	 143,675,125 		
Preference shares redemption reserve		 150,000,000	 – 		
Reserve on merger		 105,152,005	 105,152,005 				

361,585,373	 248,827,130 		
Surplus on revaluation of investments		 556,868	 2,215,724 				

362,142,241	 251,042,854 			

5	 SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF FIXED ASSETS	

Opening balance		 414,123,474	 414,123,474 		
Surplus transferred to unappropriated profit:		

– Prior years		 83,873,950	 58,294,165 			
– Current year		 23,685,013	 25,579,785 				

107,558,963	 83,873,950 				

306,564,511	 330,249,524 		

The Company revalued land, building and plant and machinery during 1999 and 2002 
which produced revaluation surplus of Rs. 253.29 million and Rs. 160.83 million 
respectively. The total surplus of Rs. 414.123 million had been added to the book value 
of the assets and the corresponding amount had been credited to the surplus on 
revaluation of fixed assets.
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			2004	 2003		
Note 	 Rupees	 Rupees 

6	 LONG TERM FINANCING - Secured 				

Long term running finances 	
- Utilised under mark up arrangements 		

Habib Bank Limited (HBL)	 6.1	 400,000,000 	 500,000,000 			
Faysal Bank Limited (FBL)	 6.2	 –  	 250,000,000 		
United Bank Limited (UBL) 	 6.3	 200,000,000 	 – 		
Citi Bank	 6.4	 200,000,000 	 – 		

Term Finance Certificates (TFCs)	 6.5	 250,000,000 	 – 				

1,050,000,000 	 750,000,000 			
Less: Current maturity grouped 		
under current liabilities		 (300,000,000)	 (100,000,000)				

750,000,000 	 650,000,000 	

6.1	 The Company obtained this finance from consortium of banks lead by HBL which is repayable in 10 
equal half yearly instalments commencing from December, 2003.	

The finance carries mark-up based on the State Bank of Pakistan's last auctioned 6-months treasury 
bills' cut-off plus 300 basic points with a floor of 4.75% per annum. It is secured by way of first 
pari passu charge on the project through an equitable mortgage on land and building and 
hypothecation of plant and machinery and personal guarantees of some of the directors of the 
Company.

6.2	 This represents bridge finance facility obtained from FBL carrying mark-up @ 4.50 % per annum. 
The loan was paid off during the year, from the proceeds of TFCs - private placement. It was secured 
against charge on fixed assets.

6.3	 The Company obtained a bridge finance facility of Rs. 250 million from UBL against which the bank 
disbursed Rs. 200 million up to September 30, 2004. It is repayable within two months from the 
date of disbursement. The management of the Company intends to substitute the bridge finance with 
long term finances and as such the same has been classified as a non-current liability.	

The facility is secured against 1st pari passu charge on assets, personal guarantees and demand 
promissory notes.

6.4	 The Company has executed an agreement with Citi Bank for sale of assets at Rs. 200 million and 
purchase back the same at a purchase price of Rs. 322.792 Million. The loan is repayable in 6 equal 
half yearly instalments commencing from February 2006.		

This facility carries mark-up @ 8% per annum. Mark-up @ 22% per annum is chargeable, if the Company 
fails to make payment on due date. It is secured by way of hypothecation and/or hypothecation over 
the present and future fixed assets of the Company and demand promissory notes.

6.5	 TFCs have been issued by way of private placements with a consortium of institutional investors. 
The total issue comprises of 250 TFCs having face vale of Rs. 100,000 and 45,000 TFCs having 
face value of Rs. 5,000.	

Terms of repayment	

Call option/ Partial call option	

The Company may redeem the TFCs by way of exercise of the call/partial call option by giving written 
notice to the TFC holders and the trustee of not less than ninety days. In case of exercise of 
call/partial call option within thirty months from the issue date, the Company is liable to pay 
premium @ 0.1% of the call/partial redemption amount.		

Rate of return	

The return on TFCs is payable semi annually. This is calculated at six months KIBOR prevailing two 
days prior to the issue date in respect of profit payment due plus margin of 1.75%.
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	Trustee	

In order to protect the interests of TFC holders, NDLC-IFIC Bank Limited has been appointed as 
trustee under a trust deed dated 2nd August, 2004.		

In case the Company defaults in any of its obligations, the trustee may enforce the Company's 
obligations in accordance with the terms of trust deed. The proceeds of any such enforcements 
shall be distributed to the TFC holders at that time on pari passu basis in proportion to the amounts 
owed to them in pursuant to the TFCs.	

Security	

This finance is secured by first pari passu charge over present and future fixed assets excluding 
immovable property and mortgage of immovable properties.

7	 LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT TO FINANCE LEASE - Secured 				

2004	 2003 				
Rupees	 Rupees 	

Gross minimum lease payments 		
Not later than one year		 76,494,987 	 81,292,132 	
Later than one year but not later than five years	 146,218,007 	 189,667,338 				

222,712,994 	 270,959,470 	
Less:    	Financial charges allocated to future periods	 26,050,646 	 44,671,837 				

196,662,348 	 226,287,633 	
Less:    Security deposits adjustable on 	
            expiry of lease terms		 17,076,648 	 21,784,299 				

179,585,700 	 204,503,334 	
Less:    Current maturity grouped under 	
            current liabilities		 63,081,881 	 60,798,533 				

116,503,819 	 143,704,801 	
Present value of minimum lease payments 					
Not later than one year		 63,081,881 	 60,798,533 	
Later than one year but not later than five years	 116,503,819 	 143,704,801 				

179,585,700 	 204,503,334 											

Azgard Nine Limited (	The Company) has acquired plant and machinery and vehicles from 
various Leasing Companies. Rentals are payable in monthly/quarterly instalments upto 
November, 2008. The discount factors applied range between 6.75% to 19.00% per annum. 
The Company intends to exercise its option to purchase the leased assets upon payment 
of liability over the lease term and surrender of deposit at the end of lease term. Taxes, 
repairs and insurance costs are to be borne by lessee. In case of termination of the 
agreement, the lessee is to pay the entire rent of un-expired period. These are secured 
against demand promissory notes.					

8	 DEFERRED LIABILITY - Staff gratuity 	

Movement in liability recognised in the 	
balance sheet 								

Balance sheet liability / (assets) as on 	
September 30, 2003		 25,512,837 	 19,808,282 		
Amount recognised during the year		 11,218,709 	 13,706,344 				

36,731,546 	 33,514,626 	

Contributions made by the Company 	
during the year-Transferred to provident fund. 		 36,731,546 	 8,001,789 				

– 	 25,512,837
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				2004	 2003 			
Note	 Rupees	 Rupees		

Reconciliation of the liability recognised 	
   in the balance sheet				
Present value of defined benefit obligation		 – 	 26,157,132 		
Less: Un-recognised actuarial losses		 – 	 (644,295)				

– 	 25,512,837 			

The following amounts have been charged to the profit and loss account during the 			
   current year. 			

Provision for gratuity for the year, the break-up of which is as follows:		

Current service cost		 9,943,067	 11,725,516 		
Interest cost		 1,275,642	 1,980,828 				

11,218,709	 13,706,344  		

Amount charged to 	
   	    cost of sales		 8,414,032	 10,115,369 		
   	    Administrative and selling expenses		 2,804,677	 3,590,975 					

11,218,709	 13,706,344 	

8.1	 Actuarial valuation was carried out as at September 30, 2002 using projected 
unit credit method assuming a discount rate of 10% per annum and expected rate 
of increase in salary @ 9% per annum.

9	 LONG TERM DEPOSITS - Unsecured 			

This represents interest free deposits received from Company's employees under the 
Company's car scheme. Vehicles have been provided to the employees against these deposits. 
These are adjustable after specified periods by transfer of vehicle to the respective 
employee.			

10	 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS 	

Finances under mark-up 	
arrangements - Secured	 10.1	 1,482,583,392	 1,416,329,149 	
Temporary over draft - Unsecured	 10.2	 10,326,500	 12,326,952 				

1,492,909,892	 1,428,656,101 		

10.1	 These represent short-term financing facilities available from various banks 
amounting to Rs.3,116.08 million (2003: Rs.1,627.50 million) and US $10.5 million 
(2003: US $ 11.500 million). These facilities carry mark-up at the rates ranging 
between Re. 0.06 to Re. 0.19 per Rs. 1,000 per day or part thereof on the price 
outstanding.							

L/C limits available for opening letters of credit/guarantee aggregate Rs. 1,040.25 
million (2003: Rs. 827.500 million) of which the amount remaining un-utilised at 
the year end was Rs. 510.38 million (2003: Rs. 89.101 million) .					

These finances are secured by 1st pari passu charge over current assets, 
hypothecation of stocks of raw materials, work-in-process and finished goods, 
pledge of raw materials, goods imported through banks, export bills drawn under 
confirmed L/C's or contracts, lien on documents of the title of goods and personal 
guarantees of some of the directors of the Company.				

These include foreign currency loan of US $ 6,992,986 (2003: US $ 3,148,588) 
which have been converted into Pak Rupees at the exchange rate prevailing on the 
balance sheet date i.e. US $1 = Rs. 59.37 (2003: US $ 1= Rs. 58.05).				

The facilities are generally available for a period of twelve months and are 
renewable on expiry, however, purchase prices are repayable on various dates, 
latest by September 30, 2005.
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	10.2	 It represents cheques issued by the Company in excess of balance at banks which 
have been presented for payment in the subsequent period.	

10.3	 Finances under mark up arrangements include Rs.58.78 million (2003: Rs.NIL) 	
obtained in normal course of business at arm's length from Union Bank Ltd, a related party.									

2004 	 2003 			
Note	 Rupees 	 Rupees

11	 CREDITORS, ACCRUED AND OTHER LIABILITIES								

Creditors 		 203,988,450	 235,040,148 	
Bills payable - Secured		 316,801,324	 403,527,536 	
Accrued liabilities		 54,947,816	 50,571,639 	
Workers' Welfare Fund		 20,000	 20,000 		
Advances from customers		 59,877,980	 25,833,632 	
Mark-up accrued on: 		

Long term finances		 –	 30,822 			
Short term borrowings 		 26,687,284	 8,353,144 		

Lease finance charges		 1,393,512	 2,259,063 		
Worker's Profit Participation Fund	 11.1	 20,803,281	 13,075,810 	
Customs duty, surcharge		 800,301	 797,744 		
Tax deducted at source		 9,064,521	 4,808,634 		
Other liabilities 		 7,461,272	 3,611,669 				

701,845,741	 747,929,841 		

11.1	 Workers' Profit Participation Fund 						
Opening balance		 13,075,810	 10,009,728 			
Add: Interest on funds utilised by the Company	 818,980	 658,827 				

13,894,790	 10,668,555 

 		 Less: Payments made during the year		 13,894,247	 10,667,950 			
Deposited in government treasury 		 543	 605 				

13,894,790	 10,668,555 				

– 	 – 		

Add: Contribution for the year		 20,803,281	 13,075,810 				

20,803,281	 13,075,810 	

12	 PROVISION FOR TAXATION	
12.1	 Current		

Opening balance		 44,824,871	 30,734,778 			
Add: Provision made during the year		
- Current year		 20,000,000	 19,840,093 			
- Prior years		 – 	 412,245 				

20,000,000	 20,252,338 

 			 Less: Adjusted against completed assessments	 – 	 6,162,245 				

64,824,871	 44,824,871 		

12.2	 Current status of pending tax assessments	

12.2.1	 Income tax assessments of Azgard Nine Limited (Formerly Legler Nafees Denim 
Mills Ltd) (the Company) have been completed up to tax year 2003. The Company's 
appeals for assessment years 1996-1997, 1998-1999, 1999-2000, 2000-2001 
& 2001-2002 before the Lahore High Court are pending for adjudication.				

12.2.2	 Income tax assessments of Nafees Cotton Mills Limited (Nafees) now merged 
into the Company have been completed up to the income year ended 30 September, 
2001 (Assessment year 2002-2003).



ANNUAL REPORT 2004 73

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS

For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

			Nafees has filed appeals before the Lahore High Court for the assessment 
years 1988-89, 1992-93 and 1993-94 which are pending for adjudication. The 
department is in second appeal before the Income Tax Appellate Tribunal for 
the assessment years 1997-98 and 1998-99. The Company's appeal for the 
assessment year 1999-2000 before the Income Tax Appellate Tribunal is pending 
for adjudication. The Company has also filed appeals before the Commissioner 
of Income Tax (Appeals) for the Assessment Years 1999-2000, 2000-2001, 
2001-2002 and 2002-2003 which are pending for adjudication.			

12.2.3	Provision for current year's taxation represents tax payable under section 
154 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001(the Ordinance), keeping in view the 
provisions of Circular No.5 of 2000 read with rule 216 of Income Tax Rules 
1982 for export sales, whereas, the local sales are to be taxed under normal 
law.						

Adjustments to be made in provision for taxation on confirmation or otherwise 
of the appeals.			

12.3	 Deferred 		

Since the merger of Nafees Cotton Mills Limited and Nafees Spinning Mills Limited into 
Azgard Nine Limited (Formerly Legler Nafees Denim Mills Limited) from April 01, 2002, 
there is trend of increase in export sales including indirect exports. The export sales 
(including indirect exports) during the year ending September 30, 2004 achieved the 
threshold of presumptive tax and the trend is expected to continue in foreseeable future. 
Accordingly, no provision for deferred tax has been made.					

12.4	 Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit							
2004	 2003 					

%	 %			

Applicable tax rate		 35.00 	 35.00 		
Tax effect of amounts that are:				

- non deductible for tax purposes		 15.31	 20.70 		
- allowable for tax purposes		 (41.88)	 (47.40)		

Tax effect of brought forward losses		 (8.43)	 (3.00)			

Effect of tax rates under presumptive tax regime	 5.05 	 2.43 			
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of 		
previous period		 – 	 0.42 

 		 Effective tax rate for the year		 5.05 	 8.15 

13	 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS	

CONTINGENCIES				

13.1	 Azgard Nine Limited (Formerly Legler Nafees Denim Mills Ltd) (the Company) was 
denied exemption by the customs department under SRO 484(I)/92 from levy of 
customs duty and sales tax on certain plant and machinery. The Company filed an 
appeal in the High Court, which was decided in its favour. The department has filed 
an appeal against the same in the supreme court. In case of adverse decision the 
maximum liability is likely to rise to Rs.9.40 million approximately. No provision has 
been made in these accounts since the Company expects a favourable outcome.	

13.2	 The Company filed a constitutional petition in the Sind High Court against the 
Customs Authorities. The case had been referred back to the Collector of Customs 
through Central Board of Revenue and is still pending. The disputed amount of 
Rs.1,293,061 has already been deposited with the Sind High Court hence no 
additional liability is expected to arise.			

13.3	 The Company imported textile machinery availing exemption from customs duty and 
sales tax on importation thereof under various SROs. The claim subject to fulfilment 
of certain conditions aggregates Rs. 68.156 million (2003: Rs. 64.756 million).
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							13.4	 The Company has filed an appeal before the Lahore High Court for recovery of its 
claim from the Insurance Companies amounting to Rs. 2,462,187 (2003: Rs. 
2,462,187). The appeal is pending for adjudication.			

13.5	 Refer contents of note 3.3.					

COMMITMENTS 		

13.6	 Counter guarantees given by the Company to its bankers outstanding as at 30 
September, 2004 were for Rs.0.102 million (2003: Rs. 0.102 million).			

13.7	 Commitments against irrevocable letters of credit outstanding as at 30 September, 
2004 amount to Rs.300 million (2003:Rs.334.77 million).	

13.8	 Attention is also drawn to the commitment made for payment of dividend to 
shareholders as referred in note 3.4.

				Cost / Revaluation					 Depreciation           		 Net Book    	
Particulars	 As at	 Additions	 Leased		 As at	 Rate	 To	 For	 On	 to	 Value as at		

30 September,	 during the	 assets	 Disposals	 30 September,	 %	 September	 the	 disposals/	 30 September,	 30 September,		
2003	 year	 transfers		 2004		 30, 2003	 year	 transfers	 2004	 2004

Owned:											
Freehold land						  						

– Cost	 269,167,648 	 68,470,000 	 – 	 – 	 337,637,648 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 337,637,648 	
– Revaluation	 8,442,352 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 8,442,352 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 8,442,352 		

277,610,000 	 68,470,000 	 – 	 – 	 346,080,000 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 346,080,000 
Buildings on 												

freehold land												
– Cost	 230,344,068 	 54,213,418 	 – 	 – 	 284,557,486 	 5.0 	 48,280,802 	 11,813,835 	 – 	 60,094,637 	 224,462,849 	
– Revaluation	 19,455,864 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 19,455,864 	 5.0 	 1,434,870 	 901,050 	 – 	 2,335,920 	 17,119,944 		

249,799,932 	 54,213,418 	 – 	 – 	 304,013,350 		 49,715,672 	 12,714,885 	 – 	 62,430,557 	 241,582,793 
Plant and machinery												

– Cost	 1,599,582,863 	 535,654,260 	 82,379,977 	 – 	 2,217,617,100 	 7.5 	 421,088,517 	 110,324,941 	 38,275,856 	 569,689,314 	 1,647,927,786 	
– Revaluation	 386,225,258 	 – 	 – 	 – 	 386,225,258 	 7.5 	 82,439,080 	 22,783,963 	 – 	 105,223,043 	 281,002,215 		

1,985,808,121 	 535,654,260 	 82,379,977 	 – 	 2,603,842,358 		 503,527,597 	 133,108,904 	 38,275,856 	 674,912,357 	 1,928,930,001 												

Furniture and fittings	 7,598,848 	 2,945,141 	 – 	 – 	 10,543,989 	 10.0 	 2,805,388 	 773,860 	 – 	 3,579,248 	 6,964,741 
Vehicles	 5,891,122 	 1,711,641 	 9,187,796 	 1,690,500 	 15,100,059 	 20.0 	 3,183,833 	 1,824,262 	 2,794,913 	 7,803,008 	 7,297,051 
Tools and equipment	 2,608,229 	 986,319 	 – 	 – 	 3,594,548 	 10.0 	 1,812,682 	 322,974 	 – 	 2,135,656 	 1,458,892 
Office equipments	 19,563,389 	 19,439,325 	 – 	 – 	 39,002,714 	 10.0 	 4,541,015 	 3,301,382 	 – 	 7,842,397 	 31,160,317 
Electrical installations	 32,325,405 	 25,253,657 	 – 	 – 	 57,579,062 	 10.0 	 10,505,316 	 4,707,375 	 – 	 15,212,691 	 42,366,371 		

 	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  		
2,581,205,046 	 708,673,761 	 91,567,773 	 1,690,500 	 3,379,756,080 		 576,091,503 	 156,753,642 	 41,070,769 	 773,915,914 	 2,605,840,166 

Leased:												

Plant and machinery	 230,395,038 	 63,954,008 	 (82,379,977)	 – 	 211,969,069 	 7.5 	 1,380,080 	 18,274,188 	 (38,275,856)	 (18,621,588)	 230,590,657 
Vehicles	 23,524,574 	 2,887,666 	 (9,187,796)	 – 	 17,224,444 	 20.0 	 6,315,084 	 2,876,394 	 (3,472,613)	 5,718,865 	 11,505,579 		

 	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  		
253,919,612 	 66,841,674 	 (91,567,773)	 – 	 229,193,513 		 7,695,164 	 21,150,582 	 (41,748,469)	 (12,902,723)	 242,096,236 

2004 Rupees	 2,835,124,658 	 775,515,435 	 – 	 1,690,500 	 3,608,949,593 	  	 583,786,667 	 177,904,224 	 (677,700)	 761,013,191 	 2,847,936,402 												

2003 Rupees	 2,379,070,961 	 463,663,132 	 – 	 7,609,435 	 2,835,124,658 	  	 441,003,456 	 147,403,006 	 (4,619,795)	 583,786,667 	 2,251,337,991 												

14.1	 Land, building and plant and machinery have been revalued in 2002 by an independent valuer M/s. Blue Feathers affiliations. These assets were revalued on the basis of present replacement depreciated values.	

14.2	 Disposal of operating fixed assets																													

              Particulars	 Cost	 Accumulated	 Book value	 Sale	 Gain 	 Mode of	 Particulars of purchaser	  			
 		 depreciation		 proceeds		 disposal	  		  				

              Vehicles				 – 		 – 					
 	                  Honda Civic	 1,150,500 	 414,180 	 736,320 	 1,002,325 	 266,005 	 Company's car scheme	 Mr. Tariq Saddat (Ex–Employee)				

                 Suzuki Cultus	 540,000 	 263,520 	 276,480 	 276,480 	 – 	 Company's car scheme	 Mr. Rizwan Zahoor – (Employee)

 	                 Rupees	 1,690,500 	 677,700 	 1,012,800 	 1,278,805 	 266,005 																							

14.3	 Depreciation for the year has been apportioned as under:		 2004 	 2003 													
Rupees 	 Rupees 										

Cost of sales				 164,167,467 	 140,383,061  							
Administrative and selling expenses			 6,338,324 	 7,019,945  							
Capitalised during the year				 7,398,433 	 –   														

177,904,224 	 147,403,006  

14.	 OPERATING FIXED ASSETS
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				2004 	 2003 			
Note	 Rupees 	 Rupees

15	 CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS				

Buildings on freehold land 				
–  Advance payments		 27,527,485	 5,750,000 	

Plant and machinery		
–  Letters of credit cost 		 62,231,641	 69,567,862 		
–  Other payments		 – 	 7,097,162 				

62,231,641	 76,665,024 				

89,759,126 	 82,415,024 
16	 INTANGIBLE ASSETS				

Development costs	 16.1 	 81,187,908	 – 	
Textile quota	 16.2 	 – 	 – 				

81,187,908	 – 	
ERP – Oracle financial 	 16.3 	 7,187,681	 – 				

88,375,589	 – 		

16.1	 This relates to expenditure on development of new products to gain competitive 
advantage in the national and international market. The management plans to 
continue this policy and increase research and development spending in the times 
to come.			

16.2	 Textile quota 				
Opening balance		 24,469,044	 24,221,128	
Add: Purchases during the year		 23,413,271	 23,985,789 				

47,882,315	 48,206,917	
Less: Amortisation of textile quota		 22,964,732	 23,737,873

 				 24,917,583	 24,469,044	

Less: Current portion grouped		 		
under current assets		 24,917,583	 24,469,044				

– 	 – 			

16.3	 This represents cost relating to implementation of oracle financial, which is under 
process as at balance sheet date. 		

17	 LONG TERM INVESTMENTS		
Available for sale:		

Quoted			

BSJS Balanced Fund Ltd.	  	  	  	
1,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each.		 10,000 	 – 	

Appreciation in value of investment		 600 	 – 	
Market value Rs. 10.60 per share (2003: –) 	

 	  		 10,600 	 – 	

Colony Textile Mills Ltd.	
456 (2003: 456) ordinary shares of Rs.10 each		 8,664	 8,664	

Diminution in value of investment		 456	 1,824	
Market value Rs. 18 per share (2003: Rs. 15)				

8,208	 6,840	
Unquoted	
National Security Insurance Co. Ltd.	
221,504 (2003:221,504) ordinary 	
   shares of Rs.10 each		 910,345 	 910,345 	
   Equity held 12.66% (2003: 12.66%)	
       Appreciation in value of investment		 86,423 	 1,747,703 				

996,768 	 2,658,048 	

 			 1,015,576 	 2,664,888 
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				2004   	 2003 			
Note	 Rupees   	 Rupees

18	 LONG TERM DEPOSITS	
Opening balance		 3,649,720 	 3,649,720 	
Cost incurred during the year		 14,868,110 	 – 				

18,517,830 	 3,649,720 

19	 STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS 				
Store		 50,503,425 	 33,097,125 		
Spares		 21,443,068 	 12,128,501 		
Loose tools		 662,200 	 552,170 				

72,608,693 	 45,777,796 	

19.1	 Included in stores and spares are items in transit valuing Rs 0.750 million (2003: 
Rs.0.659 million). 			

19.2	 The Group does not hold any stores and spares for specific capitalisation. 					

20	 STOCK IN TRADE 		

Raw materials 		 636,338,989 	 620,411,415 	
Work in process		 220,379,606 	 172,868,794 	
Finished goods		 568,745,505 	 472,080,704 	
Waste			 122,719 	 416,188 				

1,425,586,819 	 1,265,777,101 		

20.1	 Included in raw materials are stocks in transit valuing Rs. 75 million (2003:Rs.55.396 
million) and stocks in Customs Bond Rs.Nil (2003:Rs.14.715 M).	

20.2	 Stocks amounting to Rs.160.146 million (2003: 140.53 million) have been pledged 
as security with various banks against financing facilities.		

21	 TRADE DEBTS 	

Considered good: 		

Secured	 21.1	 610,600,400 	 277,196,084 	
Un-secured 		 313,607,956 	 259,420,000 	
Considered doubtful 		 4,249,348 	 4,249,348 				

928,457,704 	 540,865,432 	

Less: 	Provision for doubtful debts		 (4,249,348)	 (4,249,348)				

924,208,356 	 536,616,084 
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				2004   	 2003 			
Note 	 Rupees   	 Rupees

22	 ADVANCES, DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS 	
   AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 		

Advances - Unsecured considered good 				
   To employees 	 22.1 & 22.2	 19,357,526	 9,211,008 	
   To suppliers, contractors and others		 158,543,173	 96,803,745 	
Security deposit		 9,314,906	 – 	
Margin deposits 	 22.3	 201,562,598	 260,938,883 	
Prepayments		 9,411,351	 3,809,852 	
Export rebate receivable 		 26,624,906	 16,219,675	
Sales tax recoverable		 141,957,831	 82,270,385	
Textile quota		 24,917,583	 24,469,044 	
Letters of credit 		 26,571,132	 41,712,951 	
Tax deducted at source / tax refundable		 85,906,387	 60,630,440 	
Octroi refundable		 2,778,781	 77,432 	
Insurance claim	 13.4	 2,462,187	 2,462,187 	
Other receivables - Unsecured, 		

considered good		 4,052,709	 11,122,565	

 			 713,461,070	 609,728,167		

22.1	 Advances to employees are against purchase and other expenses on Company's 
behalf . The maximum aggregate debit balance outstanding during the year at any 
month end was Rs.3.50 million (2003: Rs.4.938 million).	

22.2	 No advances have been given to chief executive / directors during the year.	

22.3	 It represents deposits against letters of credit and other working capital utilised.				

2004  	 2003 				
Rupees  	 Rupees

23	 SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS	

Held for trading	
Quoted		
Bank of Punjab		

458,000 ordinary shares of Rs.10 each		 29,355,786	 – 		
Equity held 0.036%  		

Appreciation in value of investment		 995,875	 – 		
Market value Rs.66.27 per share					

30,351,661	 – 	
National Bank of Pakistan		

434,000 ordinary shares of Rs.10 each		 29,152,758	 – 		
Equity held 0.0088% 		  				

Appreciation in value of investment		 849,662	 – 		
Market value Rs.69.13 per share				

30,002,420	 – 	
Pakistan Telecommunication Co. Ltd				

1,111,500 ordinary shares of Rs.10 each		 43,688,699	 – 		
Equity held 0.0029% 		

Appreciation in value of investment		 5,106,151	 – 		
Market value Rs.43.90 per share				

48,794,850 	 – 				

109,148,931 	 –
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				2004  	 2003 			
Note	 Rupees  	 Rupees

24	 CASH AND BANK BALANCES	

Cash in hand 		 2,556,878	 505,615 	
Cash at banks	

current accounts 		 9,604,150 	 7,995,737 	
saving accounts		 8,787,582 	 13,100,398 				

18,391,732 	 21,096,135 				

20,948,610 	 21,601,750 						

24.1	 Cash at banks on saving accounts include foreign currency balances of US $ 
132,764 (2003: US $ 117,527) which have been converted into pak rupees at the 
exchange rate prevailing on the balance sheet date i.e. US $ 1= Rs. 59.35 (2003:
US $ 1=Rs. 57.90).		

25	 SALES -Net 		

Local 		 1,613,246,671 	 1,044,399,750	

 	 Export (including indirect export) 
                     - net of export development 		

surcharge amounting to Rs.3,484,649 		
to (2003: Rs. 49,803) and exchange 		
gain of Rs.13,221,017 		
(2003:Rs. 336,182)		 1,657,688,070 	 1,616,709,320 		
Waste		 33,097,303 	 27,893,059 

 				 3,304,032,044 	 2,689,002,129 				

Less: 	Commission to selling agents - Local 		 3,501,456 	 19,767,020 	
                                               - Export 		 34,874,588 	 25,238,015 	
Sales tax 		 94,596,501 	 214,341,443 	
Brokerage and discounts		 10,279,066 	 1,528,469 				

143,251,611 	 260,874,947 				

3,160,780,433 	 2,428,127,182 			

26	 COST OF SALES				

Raw materials and other direct 	
materials consumed		 1,748,889,828 	 1,295,156,696 	
Salaries, wages and benefits		 283,661,014 	 242,241,067 	
Fuel and power		 189,237,711 	 179,509,434 	
Store and spares consumed		 48,628,540 	 51,287,245 	
Travelling ,conveyance and entertainment 		 16,704,076 	 10,404,724 	
Rent, rates and taxes		 2,070,589 	 891,850 	
Insurance		 6,792,699 	 7,570,049 	
Repair and maintenance		 10,793,306 	 12,686,129 	
Processing charges		 17,529,443 	 66,327,990 	
Depreciation	 14.3	 164,167,467 	 140,383,061 	
Printing & stationery 		 710,526 	 1,097,236 	
Communications		 2,530,894 	 899,435 	
Others		 6,921,232 	 5,909,612 				

2,528,637,325 	 2,014,364,528 	

Adjustment of work in process		

Opening		 172,868,794 	 92,181,376 	
Closing		 (220,379,606)	 (172,868,794)				

(47,510,812)	 (80,687,418)	

Cost of goods manufactured		 2,481,126,513 	 1,933,677,110 				

Adjustment of finished goods					
Opening		 472,496,892 	 267,739,214 	
Purchases		 56,024,092 	 53,104,588 	
Closing		 (568,868,224)	 (472,496,892)				

(40,347,240)	 (151,653,090)				

2,440,779,273 	 1,782,024,020 				

26.1 	 Salaries, wages and benefits include contribution to provident fund amounting to 
Rs. 6,117,233 (2003: Rs. 1,156,042) and gratuity expense for the year as mentioned 
in note 8.
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				2004  	 2003 			
Note 	 Rupees  	 Rupees	

27	 ADMINISTRATIVE AND SELLING EXPENSES 				

Salaries and benefits		 53,703,016 	 43,643,109	
Travelling and conveyance including 	
    chief executive/directors'	
travelling Rs 9,887,430 (2003:Rs.2,301,611)		 16,005,579 	 15,846,810	
Power and fuel 		 1,580,446 	 – 	
Repair and maintenance		 2,514,315 	 1,716,519	
Rent, rates and taxes		 1,247,250 	 131,064	
Insurance		 450,145 	 2,068,135	
Freight and clearing charges		 48,598,511 	 74,274,831	
Printing and stationery		 2,114,502 	 2,675,448	
Communications		 11,295,398 	 15,724,895 	
Advertisement and sales promotion		 6,829,196 	 1,876,929	
Legal and professional charges	 27.1	 2,127,432 	 671,114 	
Depreciation	 14.3	 6,338,324 	 7,019,945	
Amortisation of textile quota 		 22,964,732 	 23,907,556	
Fees and subscription		 2,636,288 	 4,837,188	
Others		 8,160,361 	 5,038,561				

186,565,495 	 199,432,104		

27.1	 Legal and professional charges					
The charges for professional services 		
   include the following in respect of 		
   auditor's services for: 		
      Audit		 185,000 	 150,000	
      Tax and other services		 30,000 	 – 				

215,000 	 150,000	

28	 OTHER INCOME 				

Financial assets		
Gain on sale of investments		 1,192,320 	 – 	
Unrealised gain on investments held for trading		 6,951,688 	 – 	
Return on bank deposits		 710,367 	 665,073 	
Exchange gain		 – 	 120,797	
Others 				
Gain on sale of fixed assets		 266,005 	 – 	
Miscellaneous		 744,411 	 267,180	

 			 9,864,791 	 1,053,050	

29	 FINANCIAL CHARGES 				

Interest on: 		
Long term loans - Secured		 – 	 34,091,394	
Workers' Profit Participation Fund		 818,980 	 658,827		

Mark up on:			
Long term financing - Secured		 23,198,011 	 12,325,396	
Short term borrowings -Secured 		 74,804,694 	 92,710,325		

Lease finance charges		 16,644,210 	 25,919,965	
Guarantee commission and bank charges		 8,242,486 	 19,935,249 				

123,708,381 	 185,641,156
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				2004	 2003 				
Rupees	 Rupees

30	 OTHER CHARGES	

Loss on disposal of fixed assets		 – 	 390,008 	
Donations		 110,944 	 176,750 	
Provision for diminution in value of investments		 456 	 –	

 			 111,400 	 566,758				

30.1	 Recipients of donations do not include any donee in whom any director or his / her 
spouse has any interest.		

31	 EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)		 2004				
Rupees	

Basic	
Net profit after tax		 375,726,023				

No. of shares	

Number of ordinary shares		 86,865,434				

Rupees  	
EPS 							

4.33	
Diluted				
Net profit after tax		 375,726,023		
Potential Preference dividend to be issued 		 319,498		

Profit available for ordinary shareholders 		 376,045,521						

No. of shares				

Number of ordinary shares		 86,865,434		
Number of ordinary shares issued 		 242,747		

Total number of ordinary shares		 87,108,181								

Rupees   					

EPS		 4.32 				

2003				
Rupees	

Basic			
Profit available for ordinary shareholders		 228,188,046				

No. of shares	
Number of ordinary shares 						

86,865,434 				

Rupees  		

EPS 		 2.63				

Diluted				
There was no dilutive effect on EPS of the Company.
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 32	 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND EXECUTIVES	

The aggregate amount charged in the accounts for remuneration, including all benefits, 
to the Chief Executive, Directors and Executives of the Company is as follows:						

Chief Executive 	 Directors 	 Executives 	  			

2004 	 2003 	 2004 	 2003 	 2004 	 2003 			
Rupees 	 Rupees 	 Rupees 	 Rupees 	 Rupees 	 Rupees 	

Managerial remuneration								
Basic salary 	 1,799,604 	 600,000 	 1,379,340 	 599,602 	 6,192,766 	29,002,252 		
House rent	 240,000 	 270,000 	 551,726 	 239,836 	 2,115,980 	10,556,456 		
Utilities	 60,000 	 30,000 	 137,938 	 59,962 	 564,793 	 3,472,631 		
Leave encashment 	 60,000 	 –  	 –  	 –  	 19,911 	 3,090,983 	

Retirement benefits	 –  	 –  	 –  	 –  	 714,689 	 4,061,135 	
Bonus		 –  	 –  	 –  	 –  	 1,388,518 	 2,445,390 			

2,159,604 	 900,000 	 2,069,004 	 899,400 	10,996,657 	52,628,847 	

Number of persons	 1	 1	 4 	 1 	 9 	 152 										

32.1	 The Companies Ordinance, 1984 has revised the definition of an Executive in the 
current year. Currently an employee, other than Chief Executive and Directors, 
whose basic salary exceeds five hundred thousand rupees (2003: one hundred 
thousand rupees) in a financial year is considered to be an Executive. Consequential 
to the above revision nine employees (2003: 152) of the Company fall under the 
definition of an Executive.			

32.2	 In addition to above the Chief Executive has been provided with free use of the 
Company maintained car. None (2003: None) of the Directors/Executives have been 
provided with the Company maintained cars.	

32.3	 No fee has been paid to the directors during the year (2003: NIL).									

2004 	 2003 				
Rupees 	 Rupees 			

33	 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES 				

Retainer ship fee		 1,189,718 	 – 	
Underwriting fee		 26,059,631 	 – 	
Brokerage		 230,975 	 – 	
Mark–up paid		 833,912 	 – 	
Misc. expenses		 445,818 	 – 	

There were no receivables or payables to related parties other than those referred in 
notes 10.3 and 21.1.
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				2004 	 2003 

34	 CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION 			

Spinning	

     No. of Rotors installed		 Note 	 1,272 	 792 
 	       Plant capacity on the basis of utilization 		

   – converted into 6.5s count 		 –Kgs. 	 6,382,842 	 4,828,136 		
   – (based on 3 shifts per day)		

      Actual production converted 		
   into 6.5s count                                  34.1	 –Kgs. 	 5,145,768 	 3,839,392 	

      No. of Spindles installed 			 39,024 	 35,024 	
      Plant capacity on the basis of 	
      utilization converted into 20s count 		 –Kgs. 	 10,570,050 	 10,414,516 	
      (based on 3 shifts per day)	
      Actual production converted 	
      into 20s count                                      34.2	 –Kgs. 	 9,561,801 	 10,025,432 	

Weaving	
      No. of Looms installed			 93 	 84 	
      Annual rated capacity on the 	
      basis of utilization – at 38 picks 		 –Mtrs. 	 15,222,452 	 14,232,000 	
      (based on 3 shifts per day) 				
      Actual production – at 38 picks 		 –Mtrs. 	 13,871,935 	 13,809,550 		

Garments	
      No. of Stitching machines installed			 287 	 106 	
      Annual capacity on the basis of utilization	 –Pcs. 	 2,400,000 	 1,310,660 	
      (based on 2 shifts per day) 				
      Actual production 		 –Pcs. 	 1,583,414 	 1,166,662 						

34.1	 Reduced requirement of open end yarn in the fabric produced during the year 
resulted in under utilisation of production capacity.			

34.2	 It is difficult to describe precisely the production capacity in the textile industry 
since it fluctuates widely depending on various factors such as count of yarn 
spun, spindles speed, twist and raw materials used etc. It also varies according 
to the pattern of production adopted in particular period.				

2004  	 2003 				
Rupees  	 Rupees 	

35 	 CHANGES IN WORKING CAPITAL		

(Increase) in current assets							

     Stores, spares and loose tools		 (26,830,897)	 (24,089,037)	
     Stock in trade		 (159,809,718)	 (543,400,878)	
     Trade debts		 (387,592,772)	 (3,148,297)	
     Advances, deposits, prepayments and	
        other receivables (excluding income tax)		 (78,008,417)	 (325,635,533) 	

(Decrease)/increase in current liabilities	

     Creditors, accrued and other liabilities	
        (excluding accrued financial charges)		 (62,452,685)	 240,852,463 				

(714,693,989)	 (655,421,282)
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36	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS	

36.1	 Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability 
settled between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length transaction. As 
at September 30, 2004 the net fair value of all financial instruments has been 
based on the valuation methodology outlined below:			

Long–term deposits		

Long term deposits does not carry any rate of return. Therefore it has been taken 
at book value as it is not considered materially different and readily exchangeable.		

Non–current liabilities		

For all non–current liabilities the fair values have been taken at book values as 
these are not considered materially different based on the current market rates 
of return and repricing profiles of similar non–current liabilities.		

Other financial instruments			

The fair values of all other financial instruments are considered to approximate 
their book values as they are short term in nature.	

36.2	 Financial assets and liabilities 				

Interest 	 Interest / mark–up bearing 	 Non interest / mark–up bearing 	  			

mark–up 	 Maturity 	 Maturity 	 Sub–total 	 Maturity 	 Maturity 	 Sub–total 	  			
rates range 	 upto one 	 after one 	  	 upto one 	 after one 	  	  			

% per 	 year 	 year 	  	 year 	 year 	  	 Total			
annum 	  	  	  	  	  	  	  			

( R  U  P  E  E  S )  	 	
Financial assets:										
Long term investments				 – 		 1,015,576 	 1,015,576 	 1,015,576 		
Trade debtors				 – 	 942,208,356		 924,208,356 	 942,208,356 		
Advances, deposits and										
other receivables				 – 	 55,276,109 		 55,276,109 	 55,276,109 		
Short term investments				 – 	 109,148,931		 109,148,931 	 109,148,931 		
Cash and bank balances	 1% to 3.5%	 8,787,582 		 8,787,582 	 12,161,028 		 12,161,028 	 20,948,610 		

               2004:	  	 8,787,582 	 – 	 8,787,582 	 1,100,794,424 	 1,015,576 	 1,101,810,000 	 1,110,597,582		

               2003:	  	 13,100,398 	 – 	 13,100,398 	 584,210,302 	 8,344,638 	 592,554,940 	 605,655,338 		

Financial liabilities:										
Long term financing	 4.75% to 8.00%	 300,000,000 	 750,000,000 	 1,050,000,000 			 – 	 1,050,000,000 		
Liabilities against assets										
   subject to finance lease	 6.75% to 19.00%	 63,081,881 	 116,503,819 	 179,585,700 			 – 	 179,585,700 		
Long term deposits and										
   payables					 1,147,729		 1,147,729 	 1,147,729 		
Short term borrowings	 1.60% to 8.00%			 – 	 1,492,909,892		 1,492,909,892 	 1,492,909,892 		
Creditors, accrued and other										
   liabilities				 – 	 611,185,617	 –  	 611,185,617	 611,185,617		

Unclaimed dividend				 – 	 95,414 		 95,414 	 95,414 		

               2004:	  	 363,081,881 	 866,503,819 	 1,229,585,700 	 2,105,338,652	 –  	 2,105,338,652 	 3,334,924,352		

               2003:	  	 1,589,454,634 	 803,859,601 	 2,393,314,235 	 703,480,663 	 6,388,502 	 709,869,165 	 3,103,183,400 												

Off balance sheet items:										
Commitments		 – 	 – 	 – 	 300,000,000 	 –   	 300,000,000 	 300,000,000 		
Guarantee		 – 	 – 	 – 	 102,000 	 –  	 102,000 	 102,000 		

               2004:	  	 – 	 – 	 – 	 300,102,000 	 –  	 300,102,000 	 300,102,000 		

               2003:	  	 – 	 – 	 – 	 334,872,000 	 –  	 334,872,000 	 334,872,000 											

36.3	 Foreign exchange risk management 				

Foreign currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exists due to 
transactions entered into foreign currency. The Company incurs foreign currency 
risk on sales, purchases and borrowings that are entered in a currency other than 
Pak Rupees. The Company enters into forward contracts to guard against exchange 
fluctuation and as such exposure to foreign exchange risk is minimal.
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36.4	 Concentration of credit risk 			

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognised at the 
reporting date if counter parties failed completely to perform as contracted. To 
reduce exposure to credit risk, the Company has developed formal approval process 
whereby credit limits are applied to customers. The management also continuously 
monitors the credit exposure toward the customers and make provisions against 
these balances considered doubtful of recovery. Out of total financial assets of 
Rs. 1,133 million (2003: 605.66 million), the financial assets which are subject 
to credit risk aggregated Rs. 423.00 million (2003:Rs.605.15 million). The Company 
believes that it is not exposed to major concentration of credit risk. 	

36.5	 Interest risk management 			

Interest rate risk represents the value of a financial instrument which will fluctuate 
due to changes in market interest rate. Since the Company borrows most of the 
funds at fixed interest rate, exposure to interest rate risk is minimal.	

36.6	 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities 				
The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial 
statements approximate to their fair values.

37	 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 				

Number of permanent employees as at September 30, 2004 was 4,513 (2003: 4,511).

38	 DIVIDEND	

Directors have proposed 10% cash dividend i.e. rs. 1 per ordinary share to be approved 
by the shareholders in ensuing Annual General Meeting to be held on 31 January 2005. 
Total amount of cash dividend to be paid is Rs. 86,865,434 which has not been accounted 
for as liability in these financial statements.

39	 DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE	

These financial statements were authorised for issue on December 28, 2004 by the Board 
of Directors of the Company.

40	 FIGURES	

– 	 On change in accounting policy, assets (see note 2.19) amount included in deferred 
costs in 2003 have been reclassified as intangible assets. No other re–arrangement 
has been made in these accounts.	

– 	 Figures in the accounts have been rounded off nearest to rupee.	

Chief Executive	 Director
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	Number of	 Shareholding	  		 Total Shares	
Shareholders	  From 	 To 	 Held	

94	 1	 –	 100		 16,751 	

180	 101	 –	 500		 77,193 	

130	 501	 –	 1000		 107,780 	

350	 1001	 –	 5000		 959,889 	

111	 5001	 –	 10000		 900,145 	

31	 10001	 –	 15000		 399,203 	

30	 15001	 –	 20000		 540,107 	

18	 20001	 –	 25000		 408,261 	

18	 25001	 –	 30000		 495,176 	

7	 30001	 –	 35000		 230,443 	

12	 35001	 –	 40000		 458,566 	

5	 40001	 –	 45000		 212,352 	

10	 45001	 –	 50000		 491,101 	

4	 50001	 –	 55000		 207,699 	

1	 55001	 –	 60000		 56,182 	

1	 65001	 –	 70000		 67,457 	

3	 70001	 –	 75000		 222,000 	

1	 75001	 –	 80000		 76,591 	

2	 80001	 –	 85000		 167,272 	

1	 85001	 –	 90000		 89,500 	

3	 90001	 –	 95000		 274,484 	

3	 95001	 –	 100000		 299,265 	

5	 100001	 –	 105000		 530,592 	

1	 115001	 –	 120000		 117,791 	

2	 120001	 –	 125000		 248,000 	

1	 145001	 –	 150000		 150,000 	

2	 160001	 –	 165000		 327,025 	

1	 165001	 –	 170000		 166,000 	

1	 225001		 230000		 227,600 	

1	 235001	 –	 240000		 236,754 	

1	 270001		 275000		 275,000 	

1	 300001	 –	 305000		 300,500 	

1	 305001		 310000		 305,500 	

1	 315001		 320000		 320,000 	

1	 335001	 –	 340000		 336,500 	

1	 355001	 –	 360000		 359,500 	

1	 390001	 –	 395000		 390,118 	

2	 395001	 –	 400000		 800,000 	

1	 410001		 415000		 411,265 	

1	 435001	 –	 440000		 437,489 	

1	 490001	 –	 495000		 490,070

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
(ORDINARY SHARES)
As at September 30, 2004
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	1	 495001	 –	 500000		 500,000 	

1	 875001		 880000		 878,739 	

1	 910001	 –	 915000		 914,500 	

1	 1085001	 –	 1090000		 1,085,500 	

1	 1095001	 –	 1100000		 1,099,500 	

1	 1325001	 –	 1330000		 1,326,500 	

1	 1335001	 –	 1340000		 1,339,500 	

1	 1400001	 –	 1405000		 1,400,669 	

1	 1465001		 1470000		 1,466,265 	

1	 1720001	 –	 1725000		 1,725,000 	

1	 1875001	 –	 1880000		 1,876,500 	

1	 1975001	 –	 1980000		 1,980,000 	

1	 2040001	 –	 2045000		 4,085,701 	

1	 3970001	 –	 3975000		 3,970,750 	

1	 4260001	 –	 4265000		 4,261,560 	

1	 4930001	 –	 4935000		 4,933,000 	

1	 5305001	 –	 5310000		 5,310,000 	

1	 7305001	 –	 7310000		 7,308,060 	

1	 8200001	 –	 8250000		 8,200,940 	

1	 20015001	 –	 20020000		 20,015,629 	

1061					 86,865,434 						

Shareholder's	 Number of 	 Number of	
Category		 Shareholders	 Shares Held	 Percentage						

Financial Institution			 10	 10,478,615 	 12.06 

Individual			 987 	 52,308,458 	 60.22 

Insurance Companies			 1	 99,265 	 0.11 

Investment Companies			 1	 27,889 	 0.03 

Joint Stock Companies			 54	 15,752,538 	 18.13 

Mutual Funds			 8 	 8,198,669 	 9.44 				

1,061 	 86,865,434 	 100.00

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
(ORDINARY SHARES)
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CATEGORIES OF		 NUMBER OF 	 NUMBER OF
SHAREHOLDERS	  	 SHAREHOLDERS 	 SHARES HELD				

ASSOCIATED COMPANIES, UNDERTAKINGS			
AND RELATED PARTIES		 Nil	 Nil     				

NIT and ICP		 1	 27,889 				

DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER	
AND THEIR SPOUSE AND MINOR CHILDREN				

Mr. Mueen Afzal	 Chairman	 1	 1 
Mr. Ahmed H. Shaikh	 CEO	 1	 4,261,560 
Mr. Aehsun M. H. Shaikh	 Director	 1	 3,970,750 
Mr. Khalid A.H. Al-Sagar	 Director	 1	 1,466,265 
Chief Justice (R) Mian Mahboob Ahmad 	 Director	 1	 1 
Mr. Ali Jehangir Siddiqui	 Director	 1	 1 
Mr. Muhammad Mukarram	 Director	 1	 11,400 				

Executives		 Nil	 Nil        				

Public Sector Companies, Corporation &		 54	 15,752,538 
Joint Stock Companies

Banks, DFIs, NBFI, Insurance Companies		
Leasing Companies, Modarabas & Mutual			
Funds		 19	 18,776,549 				

SHAREHOLDERS HOLDINGS TEN PERCENT OR	
MORE VOTING INTEREST OF THE COMPANY		

Mrs. Nasreen H. Shaikh		 1	 20,015,629 				

DETAIL OF TRADING IN SHARES BY THE DIRECTORS, 
CEO, CFO, COMPANY SECRETARY, THEIR SPOUSES 
AND MINOR CHILDREN.

During the year Mr. Ahmed H. Shaikh, CEO and Mr. Aehsun M.H. Shaikh, director of the 
Company gifted under the Islamic Law 4,191,400 and 4,482,210 ordinary shares 
respectively in favour of their mother.

CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS
(ORDINARY SHARES)
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING 
(PREFERENCE SHARES)
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	Shareholder's	Number of 	Number of	
Category		 Shareholders	 Shares Held	 Percentage						

Financial Institution			 4	 4,637,181 	 5.34 

Individual			 123	 27,065,103 	 31.16 

Investment Companies			 1	 39,500 	 0.05 

Joint Stock Companies			 10	 54,923,650 	 63.23 

Modarabas			 1	 50,000 	 0.06 

Others				 1	 150,000 	 0.17 										

140 	 86,865,434 	 100.00

	Number of	 Shareholding	  		 Total Shares	
Shareholders	  From 	 To 	 Held	

6	 1	 –	 100		 212 	

29	 101	 –	 500		 11,021 	

20	 501	 –	 1000		 18,503 	

45	 1001	 –	 5000		 132,362 	

13	 5001	 –	 10000		 107,110 	

2	 15001	 –	 20000		 31,178 	

2	 20001	 –	 25000		 43,000 	

1	 25001	 –	 30000		 26,971 	

2	 35001	 –	 40000		 79,500 	

2	 45001	 –	 50000		 100,000 	

1	 50001	 –	 55000		 50,751 	

1	 75001	 –	 80000		 80,000 	

1	 85001	 –	 90000		 89,343 	

1	 90001	 –	 95000		 92,984 	

4	 95001	 –	 100000		 400,000 	

1	 105001	 –	 110000		 106,313 	

1	 145001	 –	 150000		 150,000 	

1	 245001	 –	 250000		 248,000 	

1	 445001	 –	 450000		 450,000 	

1	 630001	 –	 635000		 632,000 	

1	 1545001	 –	 1550000		 1,546,989 	

1	 2515001	 –	 2520000		 2,517,000 	

1	 2995001	 –	 3000000		 3,000,000 	

1	 23255001	 –	 23260000		 23,255,566 	

1	 53695001	 –	 53700000		 53,696,631 							

140					 86,865,434
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CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS
(PREFERENCE SHARES)

As at September 30, 2004

CATEGORIES OF		 NUMBER OF 	 NUMBER OF
SHAREHOLDERS	  	 SHAREHOLDERS 	 SHARES HELD				

ASSOCIATED COMPANIES, UNDERTAKINGS			
AND RELATED PARTIES		 Nil 	 Nil     	

NIT and ICP		 1 	 849 				

DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER			
AND THEIR SPOUSE AND MINOR CHILDREN	 Nil	 Nil  			

Executives		 Nil	 Nil  				

Public Sector Companies, 
Corporation & Joint Stock Companies	 10 	 54,923,650     

Banks, DFIs, NBFI, Insurance Companies			
Leasing Companies, Modarabas & Mutual			
Funds		 3	 4,636,332    				

SHAREHOLDERS HOLDINGS TEN PERCENT OR			
MORE VOTING INTEREST OF THE COMPANY				

Mrs. Nasreen H. Shaikh		 1	 23,255,566 	

DETAIL OF TRADING IN SHARES BY THE DIRECTORS, 			
CEO, CFO, COMPANY SECRETARY, THEIR SPOUSE			
AND MINOR CHILDREN						

The CEO, Directors, CFO, Company Secretary and their spouse and minor children have 
made no sale/purchase of Company's preference shares upto September 30, 2004.



FORM OF PROXY

I/We

of	       a member/members of the Company

and holder of                      shares as per Registered Folio/CDC A/c No.                         do hereby appoint

Mr./Ms.                                                                                      of

a member of the Company, vide Registered Folio/CDC A/c No.	 or failing him/her

Mr./Ms.	                                                                                     of

who is also a member of the Company, vide Registered Folio/CDC A/c No.	 as

my/our proxy to attend, speak and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 12th Annual General Meeting 

of the Company to be held on January 31, 2005 at 10:00 AM at Registered Office, Aiwan-i-Science, 

Off Shahrah-i-Roomi, Lahore and at any adjournment thereof.

As witness my/our hand this                 day of     January,       2005.

1.   Witness		

2.   Witness				

Date:	

Place:	

IMPORTANT:

1.	 The Proxy Form must be deposited at the registered office of the Company at Aiwan-i-Science, 
Shahr-i-Roomi, Lahore, not later than 48 hours before the time of holding the Meeting and 
in default Proxy Form will not be treated as valid.

2.	 No person shall act as proxy unless he/she is a member of the Company except a corporate 
entity being a member may appoint as its proxy any officer of such corporate entity whether 
a member of the Company or not.

3.	 If a member appoints more than one proxy and more than one instruments of proxy are 
deposited by a member with the Company, all such instruments of proxy shall be rendered 
invalid.

FOR CDC ACCOUNT HOLDERS/CORPORATE ENTITIES:

In addition to the above, the following requirements have to be met:

i)	 The Proxy Form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and NIC numbers 
shall be mentioned on the form.

ii)	 Attested copies of NIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be 
furnished with the Proxy Form.

iii)	 The proxy shall produce his original NIC or original passport at the time of the meeting.

iv)	 In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors' resolution/power of attorney with 
specimen signature shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) alongwith Proxy 
Form to the Company.

Please affix
here revenue stamp

and 
sign across

Signature of member(s)

AZGARD NINE LIMITED

AZGARD-9
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